INTERLOCAL COOPERATION CONTRACT HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION CONTRACT NO. HHS000993600001

The Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") and Pecan Valley MHMR Region ("Local Government," or "LIDDA"), each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties," enter into the following LIDDA Performance Contract (the "Contract") pursuant to the provisions of the "Interlocal Cooperation Act," Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and Chapters 533A and 534 of the Texas Health and Safety Code.

I. PARTIES <u>HHSC</u>

Name: Health and Human Services Commission Address: 909 W. 45th Street, Bldg. 552 City and Zip: Austin, 78751 Contact Person: Sarah Nelson Telephone: 512.206.5134 Fax number: 512.206.5309 E-Mail Address: Sarah.Nelson01@hhs.texas.gov Agency Number: 529

Local Government

Name: Pecan Valley MHMR Region Address: 2101 W Pearl St. City and Zip: Granbury, 76048 Contact Person: Coke Beatty Telephone: 817.579.4401 Fax number: E-Mail Address: cbeatty@pecanvalley.org Agency Number: Component Code: 350

II. STATEMENT OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

The Parties agree to cooperate to provide necessary and authorized services and resources in accordance with the terms of this Contract. Specific services provided are described in the Attachments to this Contract

III. CONTRACT PERIOD AND RENEWAL

The Contract is effective on September 1, 2021, and terminates on August 31, 2023, unless renewed, extended, or terminated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract. The Parties may extend this Contract subject to mutually agreeable terms and conditions.

IV. AMENDMENT

The Parties to this Contract may modify this contract only through the execution of a written amendment signed by both parties. Amendments will be signed by the HHSC delegated signature authority and the LIDDA's Executive Director, unless written notice otherwise is provided pursuant to Section 5.15 of Attachment D (Special Terms and Conditions).

V. CONTRACT AMOUNT AND PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

The total amount of HHSC's share of this Contract for fiscal year 2022 shall not exceed \$868,595.17. The LIDDA's share of this Contract for fiscal year 2022, the local match, is \$56,853.63. The total value of this Contract for fiscal year 2022 shall not exceed \$925,448.80. Specific information related to each party's share of the contract value are identified in **Section B-Budget/Required Local Match**.

The estimated funding amount may either be ratified or amended in writing at the sole discretion of HHSC, based on changes in appropriations, budget cuts, transfer of funds between programs or agencies, amendment of the Texas General Appropriations Act, agency consolidation, or any other disruptions of current funding for this Contract. No work may begin, and no expenditures may be incurred until the HHSC issues a written Notice to Proceed. This Notice to Proceed will either include a ratified funding amount or an amended funding amount, which will be incorporated into this Contract by a subsequent Amendment.

VI. LEGAL NOTICES

Legal Notices under this Contract shall be deemed delivered when deposited either in the United States mail, postage paid, certified, return receipt requested; or with a common carrier, overnight, signature required, to the appropriate address below:

HHSC

Health and Human Services Commission 4405 N. Lamar Blvd. Mail Code 1100 Austin, TX 78751 Attention: Office of the Chief Counsel

Local Government

Pecan Valley MHMR Region 2101 W Pearl St. Granbury, TX 76048 Attention: Coke Beatty

Notice given in any other manner shall be deemed effective only if and when received by the Party to be notified. Either Party may change its address for receiving legal notice by notifying the other Party in writing.

VII. Certifications

The undersigned contracting parties certify that:

- (1) the services specified above are necessary and essential for activities that are properly within the statutory functions and programs of the affected agencies of state government;
- (2) each Party executing this Contract on its behalf has full power and authority to enter into this Contract;

- (3) the proposed arrangements serve the interest of efficient and economical administration of state government; and
- (4) the services contracted for are not required by Section 21, Article XVI of the Constitution of Texas to be supplied under a contract awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR HHSC CONTRACT NO. HHS000993600001

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION

DocuSigned by:

Haley Turner E73A72F097BF479...

Signature

Haley Turner

Printed Name

Associate Commissioner

Title

July 8, 2021

Date of Signature

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

— DocuSigned by:

Cole Beatty 2253600ACEAD435

Signature

Coke Beatty

Printed Name

Executive Director

Title

July 8, 2021

Date of Signature

THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS TO THIS HHSC CONTRACT ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED INTO THE CONTRACT BY REFERENCE:

A-1: Statement of Work

A-2: Performance Measures and Outcome Targets

A-3: Description of IDD Services

A-4: PASSR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination

A-5: HCS and TxHmL Interest Lists Maintenance

A-6: Medicaid Program Enrollment Requirements

A-7: Options for IDD Services and Supports

A-8: IDD Submission Calendar

A-9: Guidelines for Determining and Changing Designated LIDDA

A-10: Guidelines for Determining Less Restrictive Setting

A-11: Community First Choice (CFC): Assessments, Service Planning and Service Coordination

A-12: Medicaid Estate Recovery Program

A-13: Permanency Planning Requirements

A-14: Voter Registration

A-15: Crisis Respite

A-16: Crisis Intervention Specialist

B: Budget/ Required Local Match

C: Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority (LIDDA) Special Conditions

D: Federal Assurances and Certifications:

D-1: Federal Assurances Non-Construction Programs

D-2: Federal Lobbying Certification

E: Fiscal Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Certification F-1: Training for Board of Directors

F-2: LIDDA Residential Services Funded by General Revenue for FY 2022 and FY 2023

F-3: LIDDA Residential Services Funded by General Revenue for FY 2022 and FY 2023

F-4: Community Living Options Information Process Special Terms and Conditions

F-5: Management Services Agreement

F-6: Participation in the Rural Border Intervention Project Special Terms and Conditions **F-7:** Transition Support Services

G: Uniform Terms and Conditions, Local Government Version 3.2 **H:** Data Use Agreement

FORM A: **Affidavit of Board Member** FORM B: **Affidavit of Executive Director**

Local Intellectual Developmental Disability Authority Performance Contract

Fiscal Year 2022-2023



Services



TEXAS Health and Human Services

Table of Contents

| Table of Contents 2 |
|---|
| A-1 Statement of Work5Article 1. Designation and Delegation of Authority51.1 Designation5Article 2. LIDDA Requirements92. Authority Functions9 |
| A-2 Performance Measures and Outcome Targets24Article 1.24Article 2.25Article 3.25Article 4.25 |
| A-4 PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination 43 Article 1. Preadmission Screening and Resident Review ("PASRR")43 1.1 PASRR |
| A-5 HCS and TxHmL Interest Lists Maintenance |
| A-6 Medicaid Program Enrollment Requirements 49 Article 1. Enrollment into the HCS and TxHmL Programs 49 1.1 Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall 49 Article 2. Enrollment into the ICF/IID Program 50 2.1 LIDDA shall: 50 |
| A-7 Options for IDD Services and Supports |
| A-8 IDD Submission Calendar 52 |
| A-9 Guidelines for Determining and Changing Designated LIDDA 59 |
| A-10 Guidelines for Determining Less Restrictive Setting |
| A-11 Community First Choice Assessments, Service Planning and Service Coordination |

| A-12 Medicaid Estate Recovery Program63 |
|---|
| A-13 Permanency Planning Requirements |
| A-14 Voter Registration |
| A-15 Crisis Respite |
| A-16 Crisis Intervention Specialist |
| B Budget/Required Local Match70Pecan Valley MHMR Region ("LIDDA")70Article 1. Allocation of Funds for LIDDA Services for Fiscal Year 202270Article 2. Other Services for Fiscal Year 202271Article 3. Allocation of Funds for LIDDA Services for Fiscal Year 202371Article 4. Other Services for Fiscal Year 202372 |
| C Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority (LIDDA)Special Conditions73Article 1. Forms73Article 2. Funding and Expenditures74Article 3. Remedies and Sanctions80Article 4. Requirements of System Agency86Article 5. Miscellaneous Provisions88 |
| D-1 Assurances - Non-Construction Programs |
| D-2 Certification Regarding Lobbying102 |
| E Fiscal Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Certification |
| F-1 Training for Board of Directors106 |
| F-2 LIDDA Residential Services Funded by General Revenue for FY 2022 and FY 2023 |
| F-3 LIDDA Residential Services Funded by General Revenue for FY 2022 and FY 2023 |
| F-4 Community Living Options Information Process Special Terms and Conditions |
| F-5 Management Services Agreement 114 |

| F-6 Participation in the Rural Border Inter | vention Project Special Terms |
|---|-------------------------------|
| and Conditions | |
| | |
| F-7 Transition Support Services | |

A-1 Statement of Work

Article 1. Designation and Delegation of Authority

1.1 Designation

In accordance with Tex. Health and Safety Code §§533A.035(a) and 534.105, Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") is the designated Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority for the Local Service Area ("LSA") consisting of the following counties:

| LIDDA | Counties Served |
|---|--|
| Abilene Regional MHMR Center | Callahan, Jones, Shackelford, Stephens, and Taylor |
| Alamo Area Council of Governments | Bexar |
| Anderson-Cherokee Community Enrichment Services (ACCESS) | Anderson, and Cherokee |
| Andrews Center | Henderson, Rains, Smith, Van Zandt, and Wood |
| Austin Travis County MHMR Center | Travis |
| Bluebonnet Trails Community MHMR Center | Bastrop, Lee, Burnet, Fayette, Caldwell, Guadalupe, Williamson, and Gonzales |

| Border Region Behavioral Health Center | Jim Hogg, Starr, Webb, and Zapata |
|--|---|
| Burke Center | Angelina, Houston, Jasper, Nacogdoches, Newton, Polk, Sabine, San Augustine, San Jacinto, Shelby, Trinity, and Tyler |
| Camino Real Community MHMR Center | Atascosa, Dimmit, Frio, Karnes, LaSalle, Maverick, McMullen, Wilson, Zavala, |
| Central Counties Center for MHMR Services | Bell, Coryell, Hamilton, Lampasas, Milam |
| Central Plains Center for MHMR Services | Bailey, Briscoe, Castro, Floyd, Hale, Lamb, Motley, Parmer, and Swisher |
| Central Texas MHMR Center | Brown, Coleman, Comanche, Eastland, McCulloch, Mills, and San Saba |
| Coastal Plains Community Center | Aransas, Bee, Brooks, Duval, Jim Wells, Kenedy, Kleberg, Live Oak, and San Patricio |
| Collins County MHMR Center | Collin |
| Dallas County MHMR Center | Dallas |
| Denton County MHMR Center | Denton |
| El Paso MHMR | El Paso |
| Gulf Bend MHMR Center | Calhoun, DeWitt, Goliad, Jackson, Lavaca, Refugio, and Victoria |

| Heart of Texas Region MHMR Center | Bosque, Falls, Freestone, Hill, Limestone, and McLennan |
|--|---|
| Helen Farabee Center | Archer, Baylor, Childress, Clay, Cottle, Dickens, Foard, Hardeman, Haskell, Jack, King, Knox, Montague, Stonewall, Throckmorton, Wichita, Wilbarger, Wise, and Young |
| Hill Country Community MHMR Center | Bandera, Kendall, Medina, Real, Uvalde, Blanco, Comal, Edwards, Kimble, Mason, Menard, Schleicher, Sutton, Gillespie, Hays, Kerr, Kinney, Val Verde, and Llano |
| Lakes Regional MHMR Center | Ellis, Hunt, Kaufman, Navarro, Rockwall, Camp, Franklin, Morris, Titus, Delta, Lamar, and Hopkins |
| Lubbock Regional MHMR Center | Cochran, Crosby, Hockley, Lubbock, and Lynn |
| MHMR Authority of Brazos Valley | Brazos, Burleson, Grimes, Leon, Madison, Robertson, and Washington |
| MHMR of Tarrant County | Tarrant |
| MHMR Services for the Concho Valley | Coke, Concho, Crockett, Irion, Reagan, Sterling, and Tom Green |
| Nueces County MHMR Community Center | Nueces |

| Pecan Valley MHMR Region | Erath, Hood, Johnson, Palo Pinto, Parker, and Somervell |
|--|--|
| Permian Basin Community Centers | Brewster, Culberson, Ector, Hudspeth, Jeff Davis, Midland, Pecos, and Presidio |
| Sabine Valley Regional MHMR Center | Bowie, Cass, Gregg, Harrison, Marion, Panola, Red River, Rusk, Upshur, |
| Human Services of Southeast Texas, Inc. | Chambers, Hardin, Jefferson, and Orange |
| Texana Center | Austin, Colorado, Fort Bend, Matagorda, Waller, and Wharton |
| Texas Panhandle MHMR | Armstrong, Carson, Collingsworth, Dallam, Deaf Smith, Donley, Gray, Hall, Hansford, Hartley, Hemphill, Hutchinson, Lipscomb, Moore, Ochiltree, Oldham, Potter, Randall, Roberts, Sherman, and Wheeler |
| Texoma Community Center | Cooke, Fannin, and Grayson |
| The Gulf Coast Center | Brazoria, and Galveston |
| The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD | Harris |
| Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare | Montgomery, Walker, and Liberty |
| Tropical Texas Behavioral Health | Cameron, Hidalgo, and Willacy |

| West Texas Centers for MHMR | Andrews, Borden, Crane, Dawson, Fisher, Gaines, Garza, Glasscock, Howard, Kent, Loving, Martin, Mitchell, Nolan, Reeves, Runnels, Scurry, Terrell, Terry, Upton, Ward, Winkler, Yoakum |
|-----------------------------|---|
|-----------------------------|---|

1.2 Delegation

In accordance with Tex. Health and Safety Code §533A.035(a), Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") hereby delegates to LIDDA the authority and responsibility for planning, policy development, coordination, including coordination with criminal justice entities, resource allocation, and resource development for, and oversight, of Intellectual and Developmental Disability ("IDD") services in the most appropriate and available setting to meet individual needs in the LSA.

Article 2. LIDDA Requirements

2. Authority Functions

2.1 Local Planning.

LIDDA shall conduct local planning in the LSA as follows:

2.1.1 LIDDA shall develop and implement a local plan that is consistent with the strategic priorities referenced in the HHSC Strategic Plan at https://hhs.texas.gov/about-hhs/budget-planning/health-human-services-system-strategic-plans-2021-2025; and in accordance Tex. Health and Safety Code §533A.0352.

2.1.2 LIDDA shall post the current local plan on the LIDDA's internet website or the website of one of the LIDDA's local sponsoring agencies.

2.1.3 Through its local board, the LIDDA shall appoint, charge, and support one or more Planning and Network Advisory Committees ("PNACs"). The role of the PNAC is to represent the perspectives of individuals, family members and other stakeholders on the provision of services and supports. The PNAC ensures that

stakeholders' input plays a significant role in the local planning and networking process as well as in policy making and service delivery design. It acts as a liaison between the local board and community by advocating for community needs and becoming a catalyst for a broader scope of participation. The PNAC must be composed of at least nine members, fifty percent of whom shall be Individuals or family members of Individuals, including family members of children or adolescents, or another composition approved by HHSC. LIDDA shall fill any vacancy on the PNAC within three months of the creation of the vacancy or within the timeframe required by the LIDDA's bylaws.

2.1.4 PNAC members must be objective and avoid even the appearance of conflicts of interest in performing the responsibilities of the committee.

2.1.5 LIDDA shall establish outcomes and reporting requirements for each PNAC in accordance with relevant portions of the Guidelines for Local Service Area Planning.

2.1.6 LIDDA shall ensure all PNAC members receive initial and ongoing training and information necessary to achieve expected outcomes in accordance with relevant portions of the Guidelines for Local Service Area Planning.

2.1.7 LIDDA may develop alliances with other LIDDAs to form regional PNACs.

2.1.8 LIDDA may develop a combined IDD and mental health PNAC. If the LIDDA develops such a PNAC, the fifty percent individual and family member representation must consist of equal numbers of mental health and IDD individuals and family members.

2.2 Policy Development

2.2.1 LIDDA shall develop and implement policies to address the needs of the LSA in accordance with state and federal laws. The policies shall include consideration of public input, best value, and individual care issues.

2.3 Coordination

2.3.1 LIDDA shall ensure coordination of services within the LSA. Such coordination must ensure collaboration with their local mental health/behavior health partners, other agencies, criminal justice entities, other child-serving agencies (e.g., Texas Education Agency ("TEA"), Department of Family and Protective Services ("DFPS"), Independent School Districts ("ISDs"), family advocacy organizations, local

businesses, and community organizations. LIDDA shall, in accordance with applicable rules, ensure that services are coordinated:

A. Among network providers; and

B. Between network providers and other persons necessary to establish and maintain continuity of service.

2.3.2 LIDDA shall provide individuals a choice among all eligible network providers.

2.3.3 LIDDAs shall comply with requirements related to responsibilities in the Electronic Visit Verification (EVV) program as outlined in HHS issued information letters and the LIDDA Handbook.

2.3.4 LIDDA shall participate in the local Community Resource Coordination Groups (CRCG) in the LSA, in accordance with the memorandum of understanding, described in the CRCG - MOU, required by the Tex. Gov't Code §531.055 (regarding *Memorandum of Understanding on Services for Persons Needing Multiagency Services*), by providing one or more representatives to each group with authority and expertise in IDD services.

2.3.5 LIDDA shall notify the CRCG in the county of residence of the parent or guardian of a person younger than 22 years of age with a developmental disability if such a person will be placed by the LIDDA in a group home or other residential facility, as required by Tex. Gov't Code 531.154(a)(3).

2.3.6 LIDDA shall cooperate with TEA in individual transition planning for child and adult individuals receiving special education services including ISDs, in accordance with 34 CFR §300.320(b), Definition of individualized education program, §300.321(b), IEP Team.

2.3.7 LIDDA shall coordinate with all appropriate entities as it relates to continuity of services for people with IDD that the LIDDA receives notification from the Texas Law Enforcement Telecommunication System (TLETS) of being incarcerated in accordance with the LIDDA handbook.

2.4 Resource Development

2.4.1 LIDDA shall identify and create opportunities to make additional resources available to the LSA which will ultimately benefit individuals (e.g., applying for grants and partnering with other organizations).

2.4.2 LIDDA shall optimize earned revenues and maintain a Claims Management System.

2.5 Resource Allocation

2.5.1 LIDDA shall maintain an administrative and fiscal structure that separates LIDDA and provider functions, including ensuring service coordinators do not perform provider functions.

2.5.2 LIDDA shall ensure best value in the distribution of resources through the provider network and implement utilization management activities to ensure efficient use of resources.

2.6 Oversight of IDD Services

2.6.1 LIDDA shall ensure the provision of IDD services by assembling and managing a network that offers individual choice to the extent possible and ensure that providers are selected based on their qualifications and representation of best value.

2.6.2 LIDDA shall subcontract in accordance with applicable laws and HHSC rules governing contract management for LIDDAs (40 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 2, Subchapter B).

2.6.3 LIDDA shall objectively monitor and evaluate service delivery and provider performance.

2.6.4 LIDDA shall require contracted medical service providers to meet the same professional qualifications as medical service providers employed by the LIDDA.

2.6.5 LIDDA shall consider public input, ultimate cost benefit, and care issues to ensure individual choice and the best use of public money in assembling a network of services providers and in making recommendations relating to the most appropriate and available treatment alternatives for individuals.

2.6.6 LIDDA shall respond appropriately to provider complaints and appeals.

2.6.7 LIDDA shall comply with the following requirements relating to the LIDDA's quality management program:

A. Develop, update as necessary, and implement a Quality Management Plan that describes the LIDDA's quality management program, including the LIDDA's methods for:

(1) Involving stakeholders in the quality management program;

(2) Measuring, assessing, and improving the LIDDA's authority functions;

(3) Measuring, assessing, and improving the services provided by or through the LIDDA;

(4) Measuring, analyzing, and improving service capacity and access to services;

(5) Measuring, assessing, and reducing critical incidents and incidents of individual abuse, neglect and exploitation and improving the individual rights protection process;

(6) Assessing and improving the process for reviewing rights restrictions; and

(7) Measuring, assessing, and improving the accuracy of data reported by the LIDDA.

B. Make the current Quality Management Plan available to HHSC staff and to the public upon request.

C. For a deficiency identified by HHSC related to critical health, safety, rights, or abuse and neglect, LIDDA shall immediately correct the deficiency and within five business days after receipt of a request from HHSC, develop a Corrective Action Plan ("CAP") that adequately addresses the correction of the deficiency that includes a description of local oversight activities to monitor and maintain the correction of the identified problem, and submit, in accordance with the IDD Submission Calendar, to HHSC for approval.

D. Within 30 calendar days after receipt of a request from HHSC, develop a CAP that adequately addresses the correction of a deficiency other than one related to critical health, safety, rights, or abuse and neglect that was

identified by HHSC during oversight activities and that includes a description of local oversight activities to monitor and maintain the improvement of the identified problem, and submit, in accordance with the IDD Submission Calendar, to HHSC for approval.

2.7 Other LIDDA Functions

2.7.1 In addition to other LIDDA functions described in sections 2.1-2.1.8 of this Section, the following are also authority functions:

A. LIDDA shall provide screening, eligibility determination, and service coordination in accordance with the LIDDA Handbook, the Texas Administrative Code, and the Service Definition Manual.

B. LIDDA shall maintain the LIDDA's Home and Community-based ("HCS")/ Texas Home Living ("TxHmL") Interest List as described in the LIDDA Handbook.

C. LIDDA shall be responsible for enrollments in Medicaid programs as described in the LIDDA Handbook, Medicaid Program Enrollment Requirements and the A-12: Medicaid Estate Recovery Program section of this Contract

D. LIDDA shall conduct intake activities and provide an explanation of IDD services and supports as described in the Options for IDD Services and Supports and the LIDDA Handbook.

E. LIDDA shall have policies and procedures for maintaining a local interest list for general revenue services available to individual within 30 days of the request date.

F. LIDDA shall provide their local general revenue interest list in a format and method approved by HHSC on a quarterly basis as indicated in the IDD Submission Calendar.

G. LIDDA shall provide permanency planning, as described in the Permanency Planning Requirements to this Contract and the LIDDA Handbook. H. LIDDA shall ensure the provision of Crisis Respite in the LIDDA's local service area is in accordance with the requirements stated in the Crisis Respite of this Contract.

I. LIDDA shall assign one full-time employee or contract employee as a lead Crisis Intervention Specialist to oversee all activities required by the Crisis Intervention Specialist of this Contract and the LIDDA Handbook.

2.7.2 LIDDA shall supervise and ensure the provision of IDD services identified in the Description of IDD Services to the following individuals located within the LSA:

A. LIDDA Priority Population

(1) In accordance with the definition of "LIDDA priority population" found in 40 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 5, Subchapter D, § 5.5153(17) (Diagnostic Assessment), LIDDA priority population is a group comprised of persons who meet one or more of the following descriptions:

(a) A person with an intellectual disability, as defined by Tex. Health and Safety Code §591.003(15-a);

(b) A person with autism spectrum disorder, as defined in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders;

(c) A person with a related condition, who is eligible for, and enrolling in services in the ICF/IIDHCS Program, or TxHmL Program.

(d) A nursing facility resident who is eligible for specialized services for intellectual disability or a related condition pursuant to Section 1919(e)(7) of the Social Security Act;

(e) A child who is eligible for Early Childhood Intervention services through the HHSC; and

(f) A person diagnosed by an authorized provider as having a pervasive developmental disorder through a diagnostic assessment completed before November 15, 2015.

(2) The determination of eligibility for the priority population must be made through the use of assessments and evaluations performed by qualified professionals. Individuals who are members of the priority population are eligible to receive IDD services identified in the Description of IDD Services and the Service Definition Manual, as appropriate for the individual's level of need, eligibility for a particular service, and the availability of that service.

(3) Since resources are insufficient to meet the service needs of every individual in the priority population, services should be provided to meet the most intense needs first. Intense needs are determined as follows:

(a) an individual is in danger or at risk of losing his or her support system, especially the living arrangement or supports needed to maintain self;

(b) an individual is at risk of abuse or neglect;

(c) an individual's basic health and safety needs not being met through current supports;

(d) an individual is at risk for functional loss without intervention or preventive or maintenance services; or

(e) an individual demonstrates repeated criminal behavior.

(4) Miscellaneous

LIDDA may serve individuals who have resided in a state supported living center on a regular admission status, but who may not be in the priority population.

2.8 General Program

2.8.1 LIDDA shall provide services to all individuals without regard to the individual's criminal history.

2.8.2 LIDDA shall provide individual benefits assistance in accordance with section 2.8.2(A) through 2.8.2(I) of this Section A-1 and comply with Tex. Health and Safety Code §533A.008(e) regarding individual benefits training.

A. LIDDA shall ensure at least one staff member receives training that is provided semi-annually through the Texas Council's Individual Benefits Organization;

B. LIDDA shall identify a staff member designated by LIDDA to serve as a liaison to Health and Human Services Disability Determination Services;

C. LIDDA shall annually screen all current individuals to determine their potential eligibility for Supplemental Security Income ("SSI"), Social Security Disability Income ("SSDI"), and Medicaid;

D. LIDDA shall screen all new individuals found eligible for services to determine their potential eligibility for SSI, SSDI, and Medicaid;

E. LIDDA shall ensure a staff member who has received the training required in section 2.8.2(A) of the Contract reviews all cases screened as having low eligibility potential to determine the screening's accuracy;

F. LIDDA shall ensure all cases reviewed and determined to have moderate to high eligibility potential for Medicaid, SSDI and SSI will be assisted with the benefits applications;

G. LIDDA shall assist all individuals who have been denied SSI or SSDI benefits to appeal their denial of benefits, from the initial appeal (Reconsideration) level to the second level (Administrative Hearing).

H. LIDDA shall ensure the LIDDA's billing staff are notified of individuals' benefits approval and application dates, to allow completion of retroactive billing within 90 days for allowable Medicaid services from the date of the application. The Social Security Administration ("SSA") will contact the individual's designated representative; and

I. LIDDA shall identify staffing that is adequate to ensure sufficient focus and capacity to provide benefits assistance in accordance with the requirements in sections 2.8.2(A) through 2.8.2(H) of this section. Referral to contractors paid on contingency fees for benefits assistance does not meet the requirements of section 2.8.2 of this section.

2.8.3 LIDDA shall ensure all service coordinators are trained in job duties as outlined in this Performance Contract and have access to and use of a complete copy of this Performance Contract and the LIDDA Handbook.

2.8.4 LIDDA, as requested by HHSC, shall assist in transferring an individual's Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with an Intellectual Disability or Related Condition ("ICF/IID") Program, Home and Community-based Services Program ("HCS") or Texas Home Living ("TxHmL") Program services, or financial management services agency services from one provider to another due to closure of the provider's facility or termination of the provider's contract. 2.8.5 LIDDA shall provide meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities and ensure adequate communication through language assistance services for individuals and Legally Authorized Representatives ("LARs") with limited English proficiency, sensory impairments, and/or speech impairments.

2.8.6 LIDDA shall cooperate with other LIDDAs, Area Agencies on Aging ("AAAs"), and HHSC local community services regional offices to ensure efficient access and intake processes for all HHSC services and programs.

2.8.7 LIDDA shall cooperate with Managed Care Organizations ("MCOs") to ensure efficient access and intake and programmatic processes for all HHSC services and programs and Community First Choice ("CFC") services.

2.8.8 This Contract references CARE ("Client Assignment and Registration"). Certain functions of CARE may transition to new data management systems during the contract period stated in section III of the Signature Document (Contract Period and Renewal). The impacted functions and the effective date of the transition will be communicated to the LIDDA at a later date. Such communication will include a crosswalk identifying the data management system to the applicable contract provision. The provisions of the crosswalk (relating to which data management system applies) shall take precedence over those identified in this Contract.

2.8.9 LIDDA shall establish a public phone number for each county in the LSA to access IDD services and ensure the phone number remains dedicated for that purpose and is not reassigned. LIDDA may have the same phone number for more than one county. The phone number(s) for the county or counties must be submitted on Form S (Contact List). Form S may be obtained upon request from the HHSC IDD Performance Contracts Unit Section.

2.9 IDD Services

2.9.1 LIDDA shall meet the quarterly IDD Community Service Target as identified in the Performance Measures and Outcome Targets.

2.9.2 LIDDA shall meet the quarterly performance measures and outcome targets as identified in the Performance Measures and Outcome Targets.

2.9.3 LIDDA shall obtain written approval from HHSC prior to using contract funds to:

A. Develop a new residential program location; or

B. Provide residential services to an individual.

2.9.4 LIDDA shall comply with the following Medicaid-related items:

A. Contract with HHSC to participate in Targeted Case Management ("TCM") (i.e., service coordination for Medicaid recipients and Preadmission Screening and Residential Review ("PASRR") and contract with HHSC to participate in Administrative Claiming.

B. Limit its participation as a waiver program provider to the capacity indicated in the CARE Screen C70, except that HHSC may grant a temporary increase in the enrollment capacity in accordance with the LIDDA Handbook.

C. Perform the enrollment for the waiver programs in accordance with the Medicaid Program Enrollment Requirements and HHSC rules governing the HCS Program and the TxHmL Program.

D. Review each individual enrolling in the HCS Program to determine if the individual is eligible for inclusion in the Money Follows the Person ("MFP") Demonstration Project as described in the LIDDA Handbook.

E. Perform Medicaid Estate Recovery Program ("MERP") responsibilities in accordance with MERP requirements.

F. Enter into an agreement with Managed Care Organizations ("MCOs") in their local service areas related to eligibility determinations, assessments, and service coordination for certain individuals participating in Community First Choice ("CFC").

G. Refrain from contracting with an MCO as a provider of CFC services for which the LIDDA fulfills the service coordination and assessment role.

H. Assist a resident of a State Supported Living Center ("SSLC") with completing a move from the SSLC within 180 days after the Interdisciplinary Team ("IDT") refers the resident for community placement (as indicated on the CARE XPTR report HC023200).

I. Provide services to individuals referred by the Texas Youth Commission, in accordance with 37 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 380, Subchapter B, Division 2, Programming for Youth with Specialized Treatment Needs, §380.8779, (relating to Discharge of Non-Sentenced Offenders with Mental Illness or Intellectual Disability).

J. Ensure that all required services identified in the Description of IDD Services are provided each quarter.

K. Submit all required service encounters per the IDD Service Grid Instructions, HHSC Service Grid and Field Definitions, and submit supplemental assignment data in CARE as necessary to ensure accuracy of individual's service record.

L. Review annually with each individual currently receiving General Revenue services or the individual's LAR the Explanation of IDD Services and Supports referenced in the Options for IDD Services and Supports.

M. Ensure LIDDA staff monitoring an individual who is on community placement status from an SSLC complies with the applicable requirements of §2.278 of 40 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 2, Subchapter F (Continuity of Services—State [IDD] Facilities).

(1) LIDDA must submit the first written report required by §2.278 of 40 Tex. Admin. Code to the SSLC within the first 90 days after the individual has moved from the SSLC and submit subsequent reports at least every 90 days thereafter for the duration the LIDDA is responsible for monitoring the individual in accordance with §2.278.

N. Access the Long-Term Services and Supports ("LTSS") screening portal on a routine basis, acknowledge receipt of a referral within 14 calendar days after the referral was transmitted to the LIDDA, and follow up on the referral in accordance with the LIDDA's established processes.

2.10 Administrative

- 2.10.1 LIDDA shall designate a medical specialist who is a:
 - A. registered nurse;
 - B. advance practice nurse;

- C. physician's assistant; or
- D. medical doctor.

2.10.2 LIDDA shall require the designated medical specialist to coordinate training, technical assistance, and support, as needed, to residential and other providers who serve individuals with IDD with complex medical needs who have been diverted or transitioned from institutions to services in the community.

2.10.3 LIDDA shall develop internal procedures for:

A. processing requests when individuals or their LARs or actively involved family members indicate a preference for a service or support on the Identification of Preferences form (Form 8648); and

B. ensuring documentation of the individual's preferences of a service or support exists to substantiate their preference and the date the preference was indicated.

2.10.4 LIDDA shall maintain access to the following HHSC databases:

A. Community Services Interest List ("CSIL");

B. Client Assignment and Registration System ("CARE");

C. Texas Medicaid & Healthcare Partnership ("TMHP");

D. Intellectual and Development Disabilities and Behavioral Health Outpatient Warehouse ("MBOW");

E. Secure File Transfer Protocol ("SFTP");

- F. Service Authorization System Online ("SASO");
- G. IDD Operations Portal; and
- H. Any other applicable databases or applications.

2.10.5 Designate and report all LIDDA contacts listed on the Form S. Update the Form S within five working days of any change.

2.10.6 LIDDA shall have an emergency plan that addresses specific types of emergencies and disasters that pertain to the area of the state in which the LIDDA

is located, including natural disasters, fire, equipment failure, a pandemic, and terrorism. LIDDA's plan must include:

A. a complete list of program sites (which include program sites of contract providers) in which the LIDDA is providing services funded by general revenue services;

B. a process for a designated LIDDA staff to contact HHSC in a timely manner with details of an emergency, actions taken, and any future plans (e.g., a plan to evacuate individuals to another location;

C. methods to physically protect or recover individuals' records;

D. a training program for all staff on emergency situations (within 30 days of employment and annually) and a requirement for quarterly drills and post-drill evaluation;

E. a process for post-emergency evaluation of emergency plan's effectiveness, including incorporating improvement activities;

F. a process by which the LIDDA can produce a complete list of individuals receiving services at each program site, the names and phone numbers of their emergency contacts, the level of assistance needed by individuals, any special needs of individuals (e.g., types of medication), and individuals' durable medical equipment or assistive devices;

G. LIDDA staff who have access to a list of:

(1) Names of all direct service LIDDA staff with their home addresses and personal telephone numbers; and

(2) one contact number for each contractor;

H. the process to update staff and individual information (e.g., departing staff and individuals are deleted from the list, new staff and their roles and responsibilities are added to the list, new individuals are added to the list, changing needs of an individual);

I. an emergency plan for each program site that addresses relevant emergencies appropriate to the program site's services, individuals, and geographic location. A program site emergency plan must: (1) clearly identify the roles and responsibilities of specific staff during each type of emergency addressed in the plan;

(2) include a process for a program site staff to contact the LIDDA administrative office in a timely manner with details of an emergency, actions taken, and any future plans (e.g., a plan to evacuate individuals to another location); and

(3) include an evacuation plan for each type of emergency addressed by the plan, which ensures reliable and available transportation, an appropriate destination, that staff are knowledgeable about individuals' needs, and allows for individuals to have access to their assistive devices; and

J. an exemption for the requirement in section 2.10.6 (I) for a program site that is accredited/certified/licensed through a certifying body provided the LIDDA has evidence that the program site has an emergency plan that has been reviewed and approved by the certifying body. LIDDA must provide HHSC with such evidence upon request by the HHSC Contract Manager.

2.10.7 LIDDA must ensure staff members at program sites are knowledgeable of the emergency plans and that staff and individuals follow the plans during drills and real emergencies.

A-2 Performance Measures and Outcome Targets

Article 1.

| No. | Performance Measure | Outcome Target |
|-----|--|---|
| 1 | Percent of all enrollments into Home and Community-based Services ("HCS") that meet timelines specified in the LIDDA Handbook (Medicaid Program Enrollment Requirements) | at least 95% for each quarter |
| 2 | Percent of permanency plans completed that meet timeline requirements specified in Permanency Planning Requirements | at least 95% for each quarter |
| 3 | Percent of all Preadmission Screening and Resident Review ("PASRR") Evaluations ("PEs") or resident reviews completed and entered into the Long-Term Care ("LTC") Online Portal within seven calendar days after receiving a copy of the PASRR Level 1 ("PL1") screening from the referring entity or notification from the LTC Online Portal as required by 26 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 303, §303.302(a)(B) | at least 95% for each quarter |
| 4 | Percent of compliance with assigning a habilitation coordinator to an eligible individual within two business days after the PE is entered in the LTC online portal as described in section 4200 Assignment of Habilitation Coordinator of the IDD-PASRR Handbook. | at least 95% for each quarter |
| 5 | Percent of all PASRR evaluations or resident reviews completed in which field F1000 "Referrals" section of the PE is completed if field F0500 "Would this individual like to live somewhere other than Nursing Facility" is marked "1. Yes" | at least 95% for each quarter |
| 6 | Percentage of completed PL1s in which the "Alternative Placement (Disposition)" field is completed within seven days of a PASRR positive person's enrollment in a community program as described in section 2320 PL1 Screening Form of the IDD PASRR Handbook. | at least 95% for each quarter |
| 7 | Percent of HCS and Texas Home-Living ("TxHmL") interest list population contacted for biennial review as required in HCS Interest List Maintenance | At least 50% by the end of FY20 100% by the end of FY21 |

Article 2.

| No. | Performance Measure | Outcome Target |
|-----|--|-------------------------------------|
| 1 | Quarterly IDD Community Service Target | 54 |
| 2 | Percent of compliance adhering to the deliverable dates described in section A-8, IDD Submission Calendar. | at least 95% for each quarter |

Article 3.

| No. | Performance Measure | Outcome Target |
|-----|---|-------------------------------------|
| 1 | Percent of compliance with conducting Community Living Option ("CLO") during the PE and at least every six months thereafter, but no more than 30 days before a scheduled quarterly Service Planning Team ("SPT") meeting as required by 26 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 303, § 303.601 (b)(9)(B)(i). | at least 95% for each quarter |

Article 4.

| No. | Performance Measure | Outcome Target |
|-----|--|-------------------|
| 1 | The Contract LIDDA will provide community living options information to all individuals living in the assigned State Supported Living Center ('SSLC") or their Legally Authorized Representative ("LAR"), or both, a minimum of one time per year. | <u>95%</u> |
| 2 | The Contract LIDDA will complete the Community Living Option Information Process ("CLOIP") instrument and provide a written report to the SSLC and Designated LIDDA no later than 14 calendar days prior to the individual's SSLC annual planning meeting. | <u>95%</u> |
| 3 | The Contract LIDDA will attend the SSLC annual planning meeting in person or by teleconference 100% of the time unless the resident and/or their LAR has specifically requested the LIDDA not participate. | <u>95%</u> |

A-3 Description of Intellectual and Developmental Disability Services

have multiple grid codes (as listed on the last page of this section), the LIDDA must establish a standard charge for * Indicates that the LIDDA must establish a reasonable standard charge for this service. For those services that each service grid code.

| caril sei vice di la cone. | | |
|--|---|---------------------|
| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
| Screening (a service that is an authority function that may be subcontracted) | Gathering information to determine a need for services. This service is performed face-to-face or by telephone contact with persons. Screening includes the process of documenting individuals' initial and updated preferences for services and the LIDDA's biennial contact of individuals on the Home and Community-based Services ("HCS") Interest List and the Texas Home Living ("TXHmL") Interest List. The service does not include providing information and referrals. | Required |
| | | |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|--|--|--|
| Eligibility Determination (a service that is an authority function that may be subcontracted) | An interview and assessment or an endorsement conducted in accordance with Tex. Health and Safety Code, §593.005, and 40 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 5, Subchapter D to determine if an individual has an intellectual disability or is a member of the Intellectual and Developmental Disability ("IDD") priority | Required This meets the requirements of Tex. Health and Safety Code §534.053(a)(3). |
| * Service Coordination (a service that is an authority function that may NOT be subcontracted) | Assistance in accessing medical, social, educational, and other appropriate services and supports that will help an individual achieve a quality of life and community participation acceptable to the individual as described in the plan of services and supports. Service coordination functions are: | Required This meets the requirements of Tex. Health and Safety Code §534.053(a)(4)(5). |
| | assessment — identifying the individual's needs and the services and supports that address those needs as they relate to the nature of the individual's presenting problem and disability; | |
| | service planning and coordination — identifying, arranging, advocating, collaborating with other agencies, and linking for the delivery of outcome- focused services and supports that address the individual's needs and desires; | |
| | monitoring — ensuring the individual receives needed services, evaluating the effectiveness and adequacy of services, and determining if | |

| 33 |
|------------|
| 20 |
| 86 |
| BD |
| Ω |
| F |
| 9 Ш |
| ш |
| -88 |
| 62 |
| 48 |
| Å |
| 4 |
| Ļ |
| ₹ |
| 15E |
| 2 |
| 75 |
| \square |
| e |
| ğ |
| Ne |
| Ш |
| gn |
| <u>i</u> S |
| ЗC |
| ŏ |
| |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|---|---------------------|
| | identified outcomes are meeting the individual's needs and desires; and | |
| | crisis prevention and management — linking and assisting the individual to secure services and supports that will prevent or manage a crisis. | |
| | The plan of services and supports is based on a person- directed process that is consistent with the [HHSC] <i>Person Directed Planning Guidelines</i> and describes: | |
| | the individual's desired outcomes; and | |
| | the services and supports, including service coordination services, to be provided to the individual, with specifics concerning frequency and duration. | |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|---|---------------------|
| | This service category includes the following: | |
| | performed in accordance with 40 Tex. Admin. Code | |
| | Chapter 2, Subchapter L. | |
| | B. Continuity of Services: Activities performed in | |
| | accordance with: • 40 Tev Admin Code Chanter 2 Subchanter F | |
| | for an individual residing in a State Supported | |
| | Living Center whose movement to the community | |
| | is being planned or for an individual who formerly | |
| | resided in a state facility and is on community- | |
| | placement status, or | |
| | Section 2.8.4 of the Statement of Work to this | |
| | Contract for an individual enrolled in the | |
| | Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with an | |
| | Intellectual Disability or Related Condition | |
| | ("ICF/IID") Program to maintain the individual's | |
| | placement or to develop another placement for | |
| | the individual. | |
| | C. Service Authorization and Monitoring: Services | |
| | provided to an individual who is assessed as having a | |
| | single need (provision of this service counts toward | |
| | a | |
| | general revenue-funded IDD service). | |
| | - | |
| | Service Coordination for individuals enrolled in the HCS | |
| | Program or TXHmL Program in accordance with 40 Tex. | |
| | - | |

DocuSign Envelope ID: 75745EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7CBD982633

| Docusign Envelope ID: 75/45EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7/CBD982633 | | |
|---|--|---------|
| SERVICE CATEGORY D | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are | Require |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------------------|--|---|
| Habilitation Coordination | Assistance for a designated resident residing in a Nursing Facility ("NF") to access appropriate specialized services necessary to achieve a quality of life and level of community participation acceptable to the designated resident and Legally Authorized Representative ("LAR") on the designated resident's behalf | Required This meets the definition from 26 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 303, Subchapter A, §303.102, (20) |
| *IDD Community | Services provided to assist an individual to participate in | |
| Services | age-appropriate community activities and services. The | |
| (provider services that | type, frequency, and duration of services are specified | |
| may be subcontracted) | in the individual's plan of services and supports. | |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|---|---------------------|
| | This service category includes: A. Community Support: Individualized activities that | Optional |
| | are consistent with the individual's plan of services and | |
| | community locations (e.g., libraries and stores). | |
| | Supports include: | |
| | habilitation and support activities that foster | |
| | improvement of, or facilitate, an individual's | |
| | ability to perform functional living skills and other | |
| | daily living activities; | |
| | activities for the individual's family that help | |
| | preserve the family unit and prevent or limit out- | |
| | of-home placement of the individual; | |
| | transportation for an individual between home | |
| | and the individual's community employment site | |
| | or day habilitation site; and | |
| | transportation to facilitate the individual's | |
| | employment opportunities and participation in | |
| | community activities. | |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|--|---------------------|
| | B. Respite: Planned or emergency short-term relief services provided to the individual's unpaid caregiver | Required |
| | when the caregiver is temporarily unavailable to provide supports. This service provides an individual with | This meets the |
| | personal assistance in daily living activities (e.g., grooming, eating, bathing, dressing and personal | and Safety Code |
| | hygiene) and functional living tasks. The service includes assistance with: planning and preparing meals; | gɔɔ4.uɔɔ(a)(4). |
| | | |
| | of behavioral support or specialized therapies activities; | |
| | assistance with medications and the performance of | |
| | tasks delegated by a Registered Nurse ("KN") in accordance with state law; and supervision of the | |
| | individual's safety and security. The service also | |
| | includes habilitation activities, use of natural supports | |
| | and typical community services available to all people, | |
| | social interaction and participation in leisure activities, | |
| | and assistance in developing socially valued behaviors and daily living and functional living skills | |
| | C. Employment Assistance: Assistance to an | Optional*† |
| | individual in locating paid, individualized, competitive | |
| | employment in the community, including: | |
| | preferences, job skills, work requirements and | |
| | conditions; and | |
| | identifying prospective employers offering | |
| | employment compatible with the individual's | |
| | identified preferences, skills, and work requirements and conditions | |
| | | |

DocuSign Envelope ID: 75745EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7CBD982633

| D. Supported Employment: Supported employment is Optional*+ provided to an individual who has paid, individualized, competitive employment in the community (i.e., a setting that individual sustain that employment. It includes individual sustain that employment. It includes individualized support services consistent with the individualized support services and supports as well as supervision, self-employments end training. Optional*+ E. Behavioral Support services and supports as well as supervision, self-employment in the individualized support services and supports as well as updervision, self-employment and training. Optional*+ E. Behavioral Support: Specialized interventions by professionals with required credentials to assist an individual to increase adaptive behavior that prevent or interfere with the individual's inclusion in home and family life or community life. Support includes: assessing and analyzing assessment findings so that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan may be the individual's plan of services and supports; the individual's plan of services and supports; the individual's plan of services and supports; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavior support plan as properting the plan as becosent. and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as becosent. and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as becosent. | SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|--|------------------|---|---------------------|
| e e e e e | | D. Supported Employment: Supported employment is provided to an individual who has paid, individualized, | Optional*† |
| a e e e | | competitive employment in the community (i.e., a setting that includes non-disabled workers) to help the | |
| a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a | | individual sustain that employment. It includes individualized support services consistent with the | |
| a e O e | | individual's plan of services and supports as well as | |
| a e ge e | | E. Behavioral Support: Specialized interventions by | Optional*† |
| individual to increase adaptive behaviors and to replace or modify maladaptive behavior that prevent or interfere with the individual's inclusion in home and family life or community life. Support includes: assessing and analyzing assessment findings so that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary. | | professionals with required credentials to assist an | |
| or modify maladaptive behavior that prevent or interfere with the individual's inclusion in home and family life or community life. Support includes: assessing and analyzing assessment findings so that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | individual to increase adaptive behaviors and to replace | |
| interfere with the individual's inclusion in home and family life or community life. Support includes: assessing and analyzing assessment findings so that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | or modify maladaptive behavior that prevent or | |
| family life or community life. Support includes: assessing and analyzing assessment findings so that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan may be the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as preserved. | | interfere with the individual's inclusion in home and | |
| assessing and analyzing assessment findings so that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | family life or community life. Support includes: | |
| that an appropriate behavior support plan may be designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as percesary. | | assessing and analyzing assessment findings so | |
| designed; developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | that an appropriate behavior support plan may be | |
| developing an individualized behavior support plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | designed; | |
| plan consistent with the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | developing an individualized behavior support | |
| the individual's plan of services and supports; training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as | | plan consistent with the outcomes identified in | |
| training and consulting with family members or other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | the individual's plan of services and supports; | |
| other providers and, as appropriate, the individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | training and consulting with family members or | |
| Individual; and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as | | other providers and, as appropriate, the | |
| and monitoring and evaluating the success of the behavioral support plan and modifying the plan as necessary | | inalviaual; | |
| | | and monitoring and evaluating the success of the hebavioral support plan and modificing the plan as | |
| | | Deressary. | |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|--|---------------------|
| | F. Nursing: Treatment and monitoring of health care procedures prescribed by physician or medical practitioner or required by standards of professional practice or state law to be performed by licensed | Optional |
| | G. Specialized Therapies: Specialized therapies are: assessment and treatment by licensed or certified professionals for: social work services; counseling services; occupational therapy; physical therapy; physical therapy; audiology services; dietary services; dietary services; behavioral health services, other than those provided by a local mental health authority pursuant to its contract with the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC"); and | Optional |
| | H. Vocational Training : Day Training Services provided to an individual in an industrial enclave, a work crew, a sheltered workshop, or an affirmative industry, to enable the individual to obtain employment. Contract funds are not used for the cost of production. | Optional |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|--|---------------------|
| | I. Day Habilitation: Assistance with acquiring, retaining, or improving self-help, socialization, and adaptive skills necessary to live successfully in the community and to participate in home and community life. Individualized activities are consistent with achieving the outcomes identified in the individual's plan of services and supports and activities are designed to reinforce therapeutic outcomes targeted by other service components, school or other support providers. Day habilitation is normally furnished in a group setting other than the individual's residence for up to six hours a day, five days per week on a regularly scheduled basis. The service includes personal assistance for individuals who cannot manage their personal care needs during the day habilitation activity as well as assistance with medications and the performance of tasks delegated by a RN in accordance with state law. | Optional*† |

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|---------------------------------|--|---|
| | J. Independent Living Skills Training: Individual service plan and provided in a person's residence and at community locations (e.g. libraries and stores). Supports include: habilitation and support activities that foster improvement of, or facilitate, the person's ability to perform functional living skills and other daily living activities; activities for the person's family that help preserve the family unit and prevent or limit out- of-home placement of the person; and transportation to facilitate the person's employment opportunities and participation in community activities, and between the person's residence and day habilitation site. | Required by contract for Nursing Facility Residents only [†] |
| Crisis Intervention Services | K. Lead Crisis Intervention Specialist: In accordance with the Crisis Intervention Specialist section: Provides information about IDD programs and services; collaborates with LIDDA staff and Transition Support Team members to identify individuals with IDD in the LIDDA's local service area who are at risk of requiring crisis services. L. Additional Staff: Provide support to the Lead Crisis Intervention Specialist in fulfilling the responsibilities identified in section K of this section. | Required by contract |

DocuSign Envelope ID: 75745EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7CBD982633

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|------------------|--|----------------------|
| Crisis Respite | M. Crisis Respite - Out-of-Home: Therapeutic support provided in a safe environment with staff on-site providing 24-hour supervision to an individual who is demonstrating a crisis that cannot be stabilized in a less intensive setting. Out of home respite is provided in a setting for which the state provides oversight (for example, an Intermediate Care Facility ("ICF"), a HCS group home, a Department of State Health Services - authorized crisis respite facility or crisis residential facility). N. Crisis Respite - In-Home: Therapeutic support provided to an individual, who is demonstrating a crisis, in the individual's home when it is deemed clinically appropriate for the individual to remain in his/her natural environment and it is anticipated the crisis can be stabilized within a continuous 72-hour period. | Required by contract |

DocuSign Envelope ID: 75745EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7CBD982633

| SERVICE CATEGORY | DESCRIPTION Additional requirements are contained in the Service Definition Manual | Required / Optional |
|--|---|---------------------|
| Residential Services (provider services that may be subcontracted) | Twenty-four-hour services provided to an individual who does not live independently or with his or her natural family. These services are provided by employees or contractors of the LIDDA who regularly stay overnight in the individual's home. | Optional |
| | This service category includes: A. Family Living: Residential Services provided to no more than three individuals living in a single residence that is not a Contracted Specialized Residence. B. Residential Living: Residential Services provided to more than three individuals living in a single residence that is not a Contracted Specialized Residence. C. Contracted Specialized Residence. Services provided to an individual in a general hospital, a substance abuse program, an autism program, or an | |
| + Note: DASBR Specialized | + Note: DACDD Checialized Services has a standard rate and are required by contract | |

t Note: PASRR Specialized Services has a standard rate and are required by contract.

| ScreeningNA311ScreeningA.1.1.1EligibilityEligibility DeterminationA.1.1.1A.1.1.1DeferminationNA323ICAP without Determination of Intellectual DisabilityA.1.1.1NANA323ICAP without Determination of Intellectual DisabilityA.1.1.1NaNA323ICAP without Determination of Intellectual DisabilityA.1.1.2.2ServiceR014351Basic Service Coordination (SC)A.1.1.2.1ServiceR013351SC - Continuity of Service CoordinationA.1.1.2.1("SC")R014351SC - FICS or TXHmL ProgramA.1.1.2.1("SC")R014351SC - FICS or TXHmL ProgramA.1.1.2.2("SC")R014351SC - FICS or TXHmL ProgramA.1.1.2.2("SC")R014Basic Service Coordinator.A.1.1.2.2R015R014R014Service Coordinator.A.1.1.2.2R014R015R014Service Coordinator may use this grid code if theInne 741R014R015 <t< th=""><th>Service Category</th><th>CARE Code</th><th>Grid Code</th><th>Name of Service</th><th>Report III- IDD Crosswalk</th></t<> | Service Category | CARE Code | Grid Code | Name of Service | Report III- IDD Crosswalk |
|---|------------------------------|--------------|-----------|---|---------------------------------|
| IbilityRo05321Eligibility Determination (DID / endorsement)eminationNA323ICAP without Determination of Intellectual DisabilityNA323("DID") (formerly DMR)R014351Basic Service Coordination (SC)R013351Basic Service Coordination (SC)R014351Basic Service Authonrization and MonitoringNiceR014351Basic Service Authonrization and MonitoringC*)R014351SC - Continuity of ServicesR014351SC - Force Authonrization and MonitoringC*)R014351SC - Force Authonrization and MonitoringR014351SC - Force Authonrization and MonitoringR014351SC - Force Authonrization and MonitoringR015R014351Both codes are necessary.R019R0NFRoundRoute Resolution of the service coordination.)R014R014347Both codes are necessary.R015R014R014RoundR014R015RoundR015R0NFRourents and Enhanced community coordination.)R014R0NFRoundinator meets the qualifications and munuity coordination.R015R0NFRoundination an enhance of an enhanced community coordination.)R014R0NFRoundinator meets the qualifications and munuity coordination.R014R0NFRoundinationRoundinator meets the qualifications and munuity coordination.R014R014RoneRoue of the PASRR Requirements and Enhan | Screening | NA | 311 | Screening | A.1.1.1 |
| NA 323 ICAP without Determination of Intellectual Disability Vice R014 351 Basic Service Coordination (SC) Vice R019 341 SC - Continuity of Services Vice R019 355 SC - Service Addination and Monitoring Vice R019 351 SC - Service Addination and Monitoring Vice R014 351 SC - Service Addination and Monitoring R014 351 SC - HCS or TXHML Program R014 service coordinator. R014 351 SC - ABON Site Review (diverting or transitioning from a No or SSLC as required by the PASR R014 service coordinator. R014 351 R014 is used to represent the service coordinator. R014 service coordinator. R014 351 R014 is used to identify the service coordinator. R014 service coordinator. R014 347 Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator. R014 service coordinator. R014 R014 Service coordinator meets the quiffications or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASR Requirements and Enhanced Community coordinator. R014 R014 R014 R014 | Eligibility Determination | R005 | 321 | Eligibility Determination (DID / endorsement) | A.1.1.1 |
| R014 351 Basic Service Coordination (SC) R019 341 SC - Continuity of Services R017 355 SC - Continuity of Services R017 355 SC - Service Authorization and Monitoring R014 351 SC - HCS or TXHML Program R014 351 SC - PCONCLOUGHARD R015 SC - PCONCORESTAY Both code of continuity Coordinator. R019 347 ECC - Pre-Nove Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an IK or SSLC as required by the PASR R014 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator. R019 347 Aservice coordinator meets the qualifications and maintain and and an and an an an and an | NA | NA | 323 | ICAP without Determination of Intellectual Disability ("DID") (formerly DMR) | A.1.1.1 |
| R019 341 SC - Continuity of Services R017 355 SC - Service Authorization and Monitoring R017 355 SC - HCS or TXHmL Program R014 351 Service delivery and R015 Both codes are necessary. Both codes are necessary. R014 347 Both codes are necessary. R015 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. R014 R015 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator. R014 R014 R014 R014 R014 R015 Service coordinator. Service coordinator. | | R014 | 351 | Basic Service Coordination (SC) | A.1.1.2.2 |
| R017 355 SC - Service Authorization and Monitoring R014 351 SC - HCS or TXHmL Program R014 351 Both codes are necessary. R015 Both codes are necessary. Both codes are necessary. R015 R014 Service coordinator. R015 S47 Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator. R014 R014 Service coordinator meets the qualifications and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. R015 R015 Service coordinator meets the qualifications and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. R014 R014 R014 Service coordinator meets the qualifications and community Coordinator and maintains and community Coordinator and maintains and community Coordinator and community Coordinator and community Coordinator meets the qualifications and community Coordinator and community Coordina | | R019 | 341 | SC – Continuity of Services | A.1.1.2.1 |
| R014 R014351 351SC - HCS or TXHmL Program R014 is used to represent the service delivery and R01A is used to represent the service coordinator. Both codes are necessary.R014351Both codes are necessary. Both codes are necessary.R019347ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.)R019347ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals.R019348ECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator may use this grid code if the 8014R0148014Mote: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator.R019348Mote: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator.R014R015A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the | Coordination | R017 | 355 | SC - Service Authorization and Monitoring | A.1.1.2.1 |
| No.14 R01A 351 No.14 R01A is used to identify the service coordinator. R01A Both codes are necessary. Both codes are necessary. R019 S47 Both codes are necessary. R019 347 ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASR R019 R019 347 ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASR R014 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. R019 348 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service do an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. R019 348 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | ("SC") | D01.4 | | SC - HCS or TxHmL Program | |
| RONF Both codes are necessary. RONF ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.) R019 347 ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements) R014 347 ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required of no more than 30 individuals. R014 R014 Service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. R019 348 ECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator. R019 348 Mote: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the R014 R014 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator. R014 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and experience of an enhanced community coordina | | R01A | 351 | R01A is used to identify the service coordinator. | A.1.1.2.2 |
| RONF RONF R019ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.)R019 R014347ECC - Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals.R014 R014ECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator.R014 R014348R014 R014Mote: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator.R014 R014Mote: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and continator and condinator and the service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | | | | Both codes are necessary. | |
| RONF R019SATFrom an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR R014R019 R014347Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.)R014 R014347Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinations and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals.R0NF R019ECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator.R019 R019348R014 R014Mote: A service coordinator.R014 R014Satervice coordinator. | | | | ECC – Pre-Move Site Review (diverting or transitioning | |
| R019 R014347Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.)R014 R014347Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.R014 R014347Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals.R0NF R0NFECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator.R019 R019348R014 R014Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator.R014 R015Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community condinator and experience of an enhanced community condinator and | | RONF | | from an NF or SSLC as required by the PASRR | |
| 347Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the R014R014347R014R014R014service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals.R0NFECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator.R019348R014Satistioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.R019348R014Satistioning from a nursing fractions and community Coordination.R014R014R015A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | | R019 | | Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination.) | A1174 |
| R01Aservice coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals.InECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and monity Coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | | R014 | 347 | Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the | line 741 |
| Route Experience of an enhanced community coordinator and maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. ECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination. R019 348 R019 348 R014 Mote: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and experience of an enhanced community coreaction and enhanced community coordinator and enhanced commune e | | R01A | | service coordinator meets the qualifications and | |
| maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. In ECC - Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination. R019 348 R019 348 R014 Mote: A service coordination. R014 State R015 State R016 State R017 State R018 State R019 State R010 State R010 State Service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and experience | | | | experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | |
| RONF RONF RONF RO19 348 R014 R014 R014 R014 R014 R014 R014 R014 | Enhanced | | | maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. | |
| R0NF transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as required R0NF required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced R019 348 R014 Community Coordination. R014 Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and experience of an enhanced | Community | | | ECC – Post-Move Monitoring Review (diverting or | |
| RONF Required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced R019 348 R014 248 R014 348 R014 348 R014 348 R014 348 R014 348 R014 348 R014 Service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and methods of an enhanced community coordinator and m | Coordination | | | transitioning from a Nursing Facility (NF) or SSLC as | |
| Community Coordination. 348 <u>Note</u> : A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | ("ECC") | DONE | | required by the PASRR Requirements and Enhanced | |
| 348 <u>Note</u> : A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | | R019 | | Community Coordination. | A.1.1.2.4 |
| <u>Note</u> : A service coordinator may use this grid code if the service coordinator meets the qualifications and experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | | P014 | 348 | | 1 ing 741 |
| | | R01A | | Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the | |
| experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | | | | service coordinator meets the qualifications and | |
| | | | | experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | |

39

| 2 | | ECC – Transition/Diversion Planning meetings for | |
|------|------|---|---------------------|
| RONF | | SSLC | |
| R019 | 373 | | A.1.1.2.4 |
| R014 | 0/0 | Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the | Line 741 |
| KUIA | | service coordinator meets the qualifications and | |
| | | experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | |
| | | maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. | |
| | | ECC – Other ECC activities excluding transition/diversion | |
| | | planning meetings for an individual who is transitioning | |
| RONF | | or diverting from an NF or SSLC | |
| R019 | 374 | | A.1.1.2.4 |
| R014 | + >> | Note: A service coordinator may use this grid code if the | Line 741 |
| R01A | | service coordinator meets the qualifications and | |
| | | experience of an enhanced community coordinator and | |
| | | maintains a caseload of no more than 30 individuals. | |
| RONH | 361 | Habilitation Coordination | |
| RO1H | | RONH is used to represent the service delivery and | |
| | | R01H is used to identify the habilitation coordinator. | A.5.1.2 |
| | | Both codes are necessary. | Line 740 |
| | | | |
| RONR | 362 | Habilitation Coordination Refusal | |
| R01H | | | |
| | 366 | HC Community Living Options ("CLO") | A.5.1.1 Line 740 |
| RONR | | | |
| R01H | 370 | HC Any NF (Service Planning Team) SPT exclusive of the Initial or Quarterly SPT | A.5.1.1 Line 740 |
| | | HC Initial/Renewal | A.5.1.1 Line |
| RO1H | 371 | | 740 |
| | | | |

DocuSign Envelope ID: 75745EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7CBD982633

40

| | R01H | | | T L C |
|------------------------------|------|-------------------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------|
| | RONH | 372 | HC/Quarterly SPT Meeting | A.J.L.L Line 740 |
| | R01H | | | |
| | | | PASRR Specialized Services: | |
| | R041 | 375 | Employment Assistance | A.4.6.1 Line 710 |
| | R042 | 376 | Supported Employment | A.4.6.1 Line 710 |
| | R021 | 377 | Independent Living Skills Training | A.4.6.1 Line 710 |
| | R053 | 378 (1-2.9hrs) 379 (3+hrs) | Day Habilitation | A.4.6.1 Line 710 |
| | R055 | 380 | Behavioral Support | A4.6.1 Line 710 |
| Habilitation Coordination | RONH | 361 362 | Habilitation Coordination | A.5.1.1 Line 740 |
| | R021 | 3101 | Community Support | A.4.2.1 |
| | R022 | 3122 hourly, 3132 daily | Out-of-Home Respite | A.4.2.2.2 |
| IDD | R023 | 3123 hourly, 3133 daily | In-Home Respite | A.4.2.2.1 |
| Community | R041 | 3401 | Employment Assistance | A.4.2.3 |
| Services | R042 | 3402 | Supported Employment | A.4.2.3 |
| | R043 | 3403 | Vocational Training | A.4.2.4 |
| | R053 | 3104 | Day Habilitation | A.4.2.5 |
| | R055 | 3206 | Behavioral Support | A.4.2.6.2 |
| | R054 | 3209 | Nursing | A.4.2.6.3 |

DocuSign Envelope ID: 75745EAA-D4A2-4862-88EE-6F7CBD982633

41

| | R054 | 3201 speech / language 3202 PT 3203 OT 3211 behavioral health services 3210 social work, counseling, audiology, and dietarv | Specialized Therapies | A.4.2.6.1 |
|--------|------|--|--|-----------------------|
| Z | NA | 3112 hourly, 3114 daily | Crisis Respite Out-of-Home | A.4.2.2.4 Line 767 |
| Z | NA | 3113 hourly, 3115 daily | Crisis Respite In-Home | A.4.2.2.3 Line 767 |
| \leq | NA | 3207 | Lead Crisis Intervention Specialist | A.4.2.6.4 Line 766 |
| ~ | NA | 3208 | Crisis Intervention Specialist (Additional Staff) | A.4.2.6.4 Line 766 |
| | R031 | 3301 | Residential - Family Living | A.4.2.7 |
| | R032 | 3304 | Residential Living | A.4.2.7 |
| | R033 | 3303 | Contracted Specialized Residences | A.4.2.7.7 |
| | NA | 360 | Benefits Eligibility Determination | A.1.1.1 |
| | NA | 345 | Permanency Planning Review | A.1.1 |
| | NA | 365 | Community Living Options Information Process ("CLOIP") | A.4.2.8 |
| | NA | 367 | PASRR Level II Evaluation | A.1.1.1 |
| | | | | |

A-4 PASRR Requirements and Enhanced Community Coordination

Article 1. Preadmission Screening and Resident Review ("PASRR")

1.1 PASRR

1.1.1 LIDDA must Comply with all PASRR requirements set forth in the LIDDA's Medicaid Provider Agreement for the Provision of PASRR and 26 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 303.

1.2 Nursing Facility Diversion

1.2.1 LIDDA must designate a staff member as the Diversion Coordinator who:

A. is at least credentialed as a Qualified Intellectual Disability Professional ("QIDP"); and

B. has two years' experience in coordinating or providing services to individuals with Intellectual and Developmental Disability ("IDD"), including those with complex medical needs, in the community.

1.2.2 LIDDA must ensure that the Diversion Coordinator performs the following duties:

A. On a quarterly basis, as indicated in the PASRR Reporting Manual, report to HHSC the number of individuals admitted to nursing facilities, diverted from nursing facilities, and residing in a nursing facility for more than 90 days;

B. On a quarterly basis, as indicated in the PASRR Reporting Manual, provide HHSC with information about barriers individuals have experienced in moving from a nursing facility to the community; and

C. Perform all duties described in the IDD PASRR Handbook.

1.3 Administrative Requirements

1.3.1 LIDDA must submit reports of non-compliance to initiate specialized services to the IDD Performance Contracts unit using the PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form (by the 15th of every month for the previous month's data).

1.3.2 Upon notice from and in a format approved by the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC"), the LIDDA must provide data and other information related to the services and requirements.

1.3.3 At least semi-annually, LIDDA must provide or arrange for the provision of educational or informational activities addressing community living options for individuals in nursing facilities in the LIDDA's local service area and their families. These activities may include family-to-family and peer-to-peer programs, providing information about the benefits of community living options, facilitating visits in such settings, and offering opportunities to meet with other individuals who are living, working, and receiving services in integrated settings, with their families, and with community providers.

A. These educational or information activities must be provided by persons who are knowledgeable about community services and supports.

B. These activities must not be provided by nursing facility staff or others with a contractual relationship with nursing facilities.

C. LIDDA must maintain documentation related to an offer of and attendance at educational or informational activities in the record for each individual in a nursing facility.

D. LIDDA must maintain evidence of the content of and attendance at each semi-annual educational or informational activity.

1.3.4 LIDDA must maintain a list of all individuals residing in a nursing facility who express an interest in transitioning to the community to any employee, contractor, or provider of specialized services. For each individual on the list, LIDDA must notify the habilitation coordinator to discuss community living options.

1.3.5 For an individual in a nursing facility, LIDDA must request reimbursement for the delivery of specialized services provided by the LIDDA in accordance with instructions on Form 1048 (Summary Sheet for Services to Individuals with IDD in

a Nursing Facility) no later than the 15th day of the month that follows the month of service delivery.

1.3.6 For an individual in a nursing facility who is transitioning to the community and receiving service coordination, LIDDA must fund service coordination through Targeted Case Management.

Article 2. Enhanced Community Coordination

2.1 Qualifications and Duties of Enhanced Community Coordinator

2.1.1 For all individuals of any age diverting or transitioning from a Nursing Facility ("NF") or transitioning from a State Supported Living Center (SSLC) as required in the IDD PASRR Handbook and LIDDA Handbook, LIDDA shall ensure

A. the individual is assigned an enhanced community coordinator who:

(1) meets the qualifications of a service coordinator in accordance with 40 Tex. Admin. Code, §2.559 (Minimum Qualifications); and

(2) has two years' experience in providing service coordination to individuals with IDD; and

B. the assigned enhanced community coordinator:

 complies with the rules governing service coordination for an individual with an intellectual disability (40 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 2, Local Authority Responsibilities, Subchapter L, Service Coordination for Individuals with an Intellectual Disability);

(2) provides intensive and flexible support to achieve success in a community setting, including arranging for support needed to prevent and manage a crisis, such as a Transition Support Team or crisis respite;

(3) provides pre and post-transition services;

(4) monitors the individual as required by the IDD PASSR Handbook and LIDDA Handbook for one year after transition or diversion; and

(5) maintains a case load of no more than 30 individuals regardless of whether the enhanced community coordinator provides service coordination to other individuals who are not covered under the provisions.

2.2 Use of Designated Funds for Enhanced Community Coordination

2.2.1 LIDDA shall utilize designated funds, as submitted and approved by HHSC, to enhance an individual's natural supports and promote successful community living, such as:

A. One-time emergency assistance:

- i. Rental or utility assistance;
- ii. Nutritional supplements;
- iii. Clothing; and
- iv. Medication.

B. Items to address an individual's special needs, including minor home modifications not funded by other sources;

C. Transportation to and from trial visits with community providers; and

D. Educational tuition assistance, such as vocational programs through community colleges so an individual can develop job skills.

2.3 Reporting

2.3.1 LIDDA shall submit quarterly reporting through Secure File Transfer Protocol ("SFTP") by the 15th of the month that follows the previous fiscal quarter using a format prescribed by HHSC.

2.4 Payments

2.4.1 Upon funding, HHSC will pay LIDDA an amount not to exceed the allocation provided to the LIDDA to provide enhanced community coordination. Funds will be paid in compliance with the OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (UGG), which may be found online at: <u>http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=2:1.1.2.2.1&rgn=div5</u>

2.4.2 Under these requirements, LIDDA may request payment be provided in advance or may submit requests for reimbursement of costs

A. Under 2 CFR §200.305, Reimbursement is the preferred method when the requirements in 2 CFR200.305 (b) cannot be met, when the federal awarding agency sets a specific condition per §200.207 (Specific Conditions), or when a non-federal entity requests payment by reimbursement. Requests for advance payment are subject to the financial management standards test and requirements established by UGG. An advance payment request must:

(1) be limited to cash needed to meet the immediate needs of the grant project;

(2) minimize time between advances and payments for grants activities; and

(3) be deposited in a separate interest-bearing account and interest earned on grant funds must be returned to the federal government.

B. If the LIDDA requests reimbursement for costs, LIDDA must submit an invoice, no later than the 15th day of the month that follows the month of service delivery, on a template provided by HHSC and include supporting documentation as described by HHSC.

A-5 HCS and TxHmL Interest Lists Maintenance

Article 1. LIDDA Compliance and Monitoring

1.1 Local Intellectual and Development Disability Authority ("LIDDA") must comply with the LIDDA Handbook.

1.2 A LIDDA must maintain an up-to-date interest list of applicants interested in receiving HCS or TxHmL Program services for whom the LIDDA is the applicant's designated LIDDA in HHSC data system in accordance with 40 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 9, Subchapter D, Rule §9.157(a) and 40 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 9, Subchapter N, Rule §9.566(a).

1.3 LIDDA must monitor and review available pertinent XPTR reports (i.e., HC027880.W, HC027882.W, HC027883.M, and HC027884.W) to ensure compliance with the outcome targets for biennial contacts as required in the Performance Measures and Outcome Targets.

Article 2. Requesting a Change to the Lists

2.1 In accordance with the LIDDA Handbook, the LIDDA must submit a request to Texas Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") to change a person's Home and Community-based Services ("HCS") and Texas Home Living ("TxHmL") interest list information if due to an input or procedural error. The request must be made by the LIDDA's, Intellectual and Developmental Disability ("IDD") Director

A-6 Medicaid Program Enrollment Requirements

Article 1. Enrollment into the HCS and TxHmL Programs

1.1 Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall in accordance with the LIDDA Handbook:

- 1.1.1 Designate staff to complete enrollments for the following programs:
 - (a) Home and Community-based Services ("HCS") Program;
 - (b) Texas Home Living ("TxHmL") Program; and
 - (c) Community First Choice ("CFC").

1.1.2 Require all designated staff to complete all online enrollment Health and Human Services Commission training as specified in the LIDDA Handbook, Texas Health and Human Services website, and Texas Health and Human Services Learning Portal before performing enrollment activities and at least annually thereafter for as long as the staff performs enrollment activities for the LIDDA.

1.1.3 Ensure designated enrollment staff do not perform functions for the LIDDA's provider operations.

1.2 LIDDA shall:

1.2.1 Not allow any of the LIDDA's staff from its provider operations to initiate contact with the individual or LAR prior to the completion of the Documentation of Provider Choice (Form 1049).

1.2.2 For an individual who is being enrolled in the TxHmL Program, ensure the LIDDA service coordinator facilitates the completion of Form 8586 (TxHmL Program Service Coordination Notification).

1.2.3 Maintain the following completed forms in the person's record:

(a) Verification of Freedom of Choice (Form 8601);

(b) Documentation of Provider Choice (Form 1049); and

(c) TxHmL Program Service Coordination Notification (Form 8586), if applicable.

(d) for an individual who is being enrolled in the HCS or TxHmL Program, ensure the LIDDA service coordinator facilitates the completion of Form 8511 (Understanding Program Eligibility).

1.2.4 LIDDA must request an extension for the enrollment if the designated time frames cannot be met. HHSC will review all Request for an Enrollment Extension (Form 1045) and notify LIDDA accordingly.

Article 2. Enrollment into the ICF/IID Program

2.1 LIDDA shall:

2.1.1. Complete enrollment of a person into the Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with an Intellectual Disability or Related Conditions ("ICF/IID") program in accordance with HHSC rules.

A-7 Options for IDD Services and Supports

1.1 In response to an inquiry for information about programs and services for an individual with an intellectual disability, the Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") must in accordance with the LIDDA Handbook:

a. provide an explanation of services and supports to the individual and Legally Authorized Representative ("LAR") or an actively involved person;

b. provide an oral explanation to at least one family member of the individual, if possible, if an LAR to whom the LIDDA provides an oral explanation of programs and services is not a family member of the individual;

c. provide an explanation of the different type of residential options, if the individual is seeking residential services; and

d. provide an explanation of permanency planning, if the individual seeking residential services is under 22 years of age.

1.2 LIDDA must follow form retention policies as identified in the LIDDA Handbook.

A-8 IDD Submission Calendar

For tracking of receipt purposes, electronic mail submissions must be sent to the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") at <u>IDDperformance.contracts@hhsc.state.tx.us</u>. When a Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") submits an electronic or facsimile submission, LIDDA must maintain original submission for their records. Performance Contracts Unit will forward electronic mail to the appropriate department. Encounter Data must be submitted using the secure file transfer protocol and CARE submissions must be submitted using CARE. If the due date falls on a weekend or a holiday, the deadline shall be the next business day,

except for Monthly Encounter Data.

Submission Type:

- "HC" Hard Copy Submission to OIG
- "E" Electronic Submission to HHSC
- "CARE" Submission Using CARE
- "SFTP" Secure File Transfer Protocol

"MBOW" - IDD and Behavioral Health Outpatient Data Warehouse

| | September | • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
|------|---|---|
| Туре | Document | Due Date |
| SFTP | Annual Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUB) Sub- | 9/15 |
| | Contracting Report (Form F) | |
| SFTP | Form S – Contact List | 9/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Q4 Report | 9/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for August | 9/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for August | 9/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for August | 9/15 |
| SFTP | Crisis Services Q4 Report | 9/15 |
| SFTP | Crisis Respite Plan | 9/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for August Expenditures | 9/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for August Expenditures | 9/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Q4 Report | 9/15 |
| SFTP | TST Q4 Report | 9/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & | 9/15 |
| | ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | GR Interest List | 9/15 |
| SFTP | Q4 Preliminary IDD Financial Reporting-Report III | 9/16/21; 9/15/22 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for August | 9/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for August | 9/30 |
| E | TST Annual Satisfaction Survey | 9/30 |
| SFTP | Local Provider Network Development Plan (Formally | 9/30 |
| | known as Local Plan) | 90 |

September

| SFTP | Quality Management Plan | 9/30 |
|------|-------------------------|------|

October

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|---|----------------|
| SFTP | Current Fiscal Year Financial Budget – Report III | 10/15/21; |
| | | 10/17/22 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for September Expenditures | 10/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for September Expenditures | 10/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for September | 10/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for September | 10/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for September | 10/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & | 10/15 |
| | ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for September | 10/16 by 4 a.m |
| E | Q4 Financial Statements and Certification Form G | 10/19 |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for September | 10/30 |

November

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|---|-----------------|
| E | Q1 HCS/TxHmL Enrollment Extension (Form 1045) | 11/15 |
| | Request Cut-Off Date | |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for October Expenditures | 11/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for October Expenditures | 11/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for October | 11/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for October | 11/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for October | 11/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & | 11/15 |
| | ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for October | 11/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for October | 11/30 |

December

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|---|-----------------|
| SFTP | PASRR Q1 Report | 12/15 |
| SFTP | Q1 Financial Reporting – Report III | 12/15 |
| SFTP | Crisis Services Q1 Report | 12/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for November Expenditures | 12/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for November Expenditures | 12/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Q1 Report | 12/15 |
| SFTP | TST Q1 Report | 12/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for November | 12/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for November | 12/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for November | 12/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & | 12/15 |
| | ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | GR Interest List | 12/15 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for November | 12/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for November | 12/30 |

| SFTP | Q4 Final IDD Financial Reporting – CARE Report III | 12/30/21; 12/29/22 |
|------|--|-----------------------|
| E | Financial Audit Engagement Letter for FY -Alamo only | 12/31 |

January

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|---|----------------|
| SFTP | LIDDA Diversion Coordinator Job Description and | 1/15 |
| | Qualifications | |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for December | 1/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for December | 1/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for December Expenditures | 1/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for December Expenditures | 1/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for December | 1/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & | 1/15 |
| | ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for December | 1/16 by 4 a.m. |
| E | Q1 Financial Statements and Certification Form G | 1/19 |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for December | 1/29 |

| February | |
|----------|--|
| | |

| l | i chiddi y | |
|------|---|-----------|
| Туре | Document | Due Date |
| HC/E | Single Audit for Previous Fiscal Year (HHSC: One | 2/1 |
| | electronic, OIG: One hard copy and one electronic) | |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for January | 2/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for January | 2/15 |
| E | Q2 HCS/TxHmL Enrollment Extension (Form 1045) | 2/15 |
| | Request Cut-Off Date | |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for January Expenditures | 2/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for January Expenditures | 2/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for | 2/15 |
| | January | |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes | 2/15 |
| | (Harris & ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for January | 2/16 by 4 |
| | | a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for January | 2/26 |

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|--|----------|
| E | Corrective Action Plan for Previous Fiscal Year's Single | 3/1 |
| | Audit or a "Letter of no Findings" | |
| SFTP | PASRR Q2 Report | 3/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for February | 3/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for February | 3/15 |
| SFTP | Crisis Services Q2 Report | 3/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for February Expenditures | 3/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for February Expenditures | 3/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Q2 Report | 3/15 |
| SFTP | TST Q2 Report | 3/15 |

March

| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for February | 3/15 |
|------|---|----------------|
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & ATCIC only) | 3/15 |
| SFTP | GR Interest List | 3/15 |
| SFTP | Q2 IDD Financial Reporting – Report III | 3/15 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for February | 3/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for February | 3/31 |

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|---|----------------|
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for March | 4/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for March | 4/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for March Expenditures | 4/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for March Expenditures | 4/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for March | 4/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & ATCIC only) | 4/15 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for March | 4/16 by 4 a.m. |
| E | Q2 Financial Statements and Certification Form G | 4/19 |
| CARE | Monthly IDD – Critical Incident Data for March | 4/30 |

April

May

| | Мау | |
|------|---|----------------|
| Туре | Document | Due Date |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for April | 5/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for April | 5/15 |
| E | Q3 HCS/TxHmL Enrollment Extension (Form 1045) Request Cut-Off Date | 5/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for April Expenditures | 5/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for April Expenditures | 5/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for April | 5/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Annual Report – Service Coordination caseload methodologies | 5/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & ATCIC only) | 5/15 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for April | 5/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD – Critical Incident Data for April | 5/31 |

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|--|----------|
| HC/E | Single Audit for Previous Fiscal Year (HHSC: One electronic, OIG: One hard copy and one electronic) (Alamo only) | 6/1 |
| SFTP | LIDDA Diversion Coordinator Job Description and Qualifications | 6/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Q4 Report | 6/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for May | 6/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for May | 6/15 |
| SFTP | Q3 IDD Financial Reporting – Report III | 6/15 |
| SFTP | Crisis Services Q3 Report | 6/15 |

June

| SFTP | ECC Invoice for May Expenditures | 6/15 |
|------|---|----------------|
| SFTP | TST Invoice for May Expenditures | 6/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Q3 Report | 6/15 |
| SFTP | TST Q3 Report | 6/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for May | 6/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & ATCIC only) | 6/15 |
| SFTP | GR Interest List | 6/15 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for May | 6/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD – Critical Incident Data for May | 6/30 |

July

| | Saly | |
|------|--|----------------|
| Туре | Document | Due Date |
| E | Corrective Action Plan for Previous Fiscal Year's Single | 7/1 |
| | Audit or a "Letter of no Findings" (Alamo only) | |
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for June | 7/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for June | 7/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for June Expenditures | 7/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for June Expenditures | 7/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for June | 7/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & | 7/15 |
| | ATCIC only) | |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for June | 7/16 by 4 a.m. |
| E | Q3 Financial Statements and Certification Form G | 7/19 |
| CARE | Monthly IDD – Critical Incident Data for June | 7/30 |

August

| Туре | Document | Due Date |
|------|---|----------------|
| SFTP | PASRR IDD Specialized Services Invoices for July | 8/15 |
| SFTP | MFP Travel Reports for July | 8/15 |
| E | Q4 HCS/TxHmL Enrollment Extension (Form 1045) Request Cut-Off Date | 8/15 |
| SFTP | ECC Invoice for July Expenditures | 8/15 |
| SFTP | TST Invoice for July Expenditures | 8/15 |
| SFTP | PASRR Reporting of Non-Compliance form for July | 8/15 |
| SFTP | GR Funded Residential Services Progress Notes (Harris & ATCIC only) | 8/15 |
| SFTP | Monthly Encounter Data for July | 8/16 by 4 a.m. |
| CARE | Monthly IDD - Critical Incident Data for July | 8/31 |
| E | Financial Audit Engagement Letter for Current Fiscal Year | 8/31 |

| Туре | Documents with No Specific Due Date |
|-------|--|
| CANRS | Client Abuse & Neglect Form CANRS AN-1-A form within one business day of |
| | completion of form. |
| E | Contract Amendment Request (Form C), when necessary |
| E | Supporting reports, data, work papers, and information, upon request. |
| E | Within five business days after request, Corrective Action Plan ("CAP") that |
| | addresses the correction of any critical health, safety, rights, abuse, and |

| n. on of |
|-------------|
| |
| |
| on of |
| |
| |
| |
| ng |
| |
| :he |
| |
| |
| ve. |
| |
| |
| he |
| with |
| |
| |

| Туре | Documents with No Specific Due Date |
|-------|---|
| CANRS | Client Abuse & Neglect Form CANRS AN-1-A form within one business day of |
| | completion of form. |
| E | Contract Amendment Request (Form C), when necessary |
| E | Supporting reports, data, work papers, and information, upon request. |
| E | Within five business days after request, Corrective Action Plan ("CAP") that |
| | addresses the correction of any critical health, safety, rights, abuse, and |
| | neglect issues identified by HHSC and a description of local oversight |
| | activities to monitor and maintain the correction of the identified problem. |
| E | Within 30 days after request, CAP that addresses the correction of an LA |
| | problem, other than one listed above, identified by HHSC and a description of |
| | local oversight activities to monitor and maintain the correction of the |
| | identified problem. |
| E | Within ten business days after request, affidavits of the LIDDA's governing |
| | body (Form A) and Executive Director (Form B). |
| E | Within 30 days after the occurrence of any event that materially affects the |
| | accuracy of the information contained in any declaration, certification, or |
| | disclosure previously filed (Form D) |
| E | Update to Form S within five business days after changes become effective. |
| | All changes must be clearly identified. |
| E | In the event of a change in the designated Diversion Coordinator, LIDDA |
| | must submit to HHSC an updated Form S within five business days and the |
| | name of the designated interim/permanent Diversion Coordinator, along with |
| | their qualifications (resume). |

A-9 Guidelines for Determining and Changing Designated LIDDA

1.1 Refer to the Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") Handbook for how to determine the designated LIDDA. At its discretion, the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") may determine the designated LIDDA for any individual or assign a LIDDA the duties of the designated LIDDA for any individual for the purpose of expediting an individual's admission or enrollment in services or ensuring permanency planning is conducted in accordance with state law.

A-10 Guidelines for Determining Less Restrictive Setting

Article 1. Purpose

1.1 The guidelines set forth in the Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") Handbook describe the procedures to be used by the LIDDA' Interdisciplinary Team ("IDT") for determining the less restrictive setting for individuals who are requesting admission, or on whose behalf admission is requested, to a state supported living center. Note: the determination of a less restrictive setting is only one part of the admission criteria that must be considered by the IDT in accordance with 40 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 2, Subchapter F, governing Continuity of Services – State Facilities, §2.255 and §2.257, and the Tex. Health and Safety Code, §593.052(a)(3).

A-11 Community First Choice Assessments, Service Planning and Service Coordination

1.1 The Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability authority ("LIDDA") must have an executed Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Medicaid Managed Care Organizations ("MCOs") serving STAR+PLUS, STAR Kids and STAR Health individuals in the LIDDA's local service area.

1.2 Initial Eligibility Determination Activities

1.2.1 LIDDA must complete all assessment activities required by the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") to determine whether the individual meets an intermediate care for individuals with an Intellectual Disability or Related Conditions ("ICF/IID") Level-of-Care ("LOC") for individuals referred to the LIDDA for assessments for eligibility for CFC services based on an Intellectual or Developmental Disability ("IDD").

1.2.2 LIDDA must conduct initial service planning activities and assign a service coordinator no later than 30 days after HHSC authorizes the individual's ICF/IID LOC for individuals 21 years of age or older with an ICF/IID LOC.

1.2.3 LIDDA must conduct reassessment activities for individuals who are receiving CFC services and communicate with the MCOs as directed by HHSC no later than 60 days prior to the expiration of the ICF/IID LOC for an individual.

1.2.4 LIDDA must ensure an assigned service coordinator provides service coordination to an individual 21 years of age or older while the individual is receiving Community First Choice ("CFC") services through an MCO in the LIDDA's Local Service Area ("LSA").

1.2.5 LIDDA must participate in the fair hearing to explain why no services were recommended if an MCO denies an individual's request for services because there were no services on the individual's recommended service plan and the individual requests a fair hearing to appeal the denial.

1.3 Annual Reassessment

1.3.1 The LIDDA must conduct reassessment activities no later than 60 calendar days prior to the expiration of the ICF/IID LOC for an individual.

1.3.2 LIDDA continues to provide service coordination for individuals aged 21 or older while such individuals are receiving CFC services through an MCO in the LIDDA's LSA.

1.4 LIDDA must participate in a fair hearing when an individual appeals an MCO's denial of services.

A-12 Medicaid Estate Recovery Program

1. In accordance with Tex. Admin. Code, Title 1, Part 15, Chapter 373 Medicaid Estate Recovery Program ("MERP"), the Local Intellectual and Development Disability Authority ("LIDDA") must require its enrollment staff to provide a MERP overview to all individuals, and their authorized representatives or legal guardians, who seek enrollment in a state supported living center, a community intermediate care facility for individuals with an intellectual disability or related condition, Home and Community-based Services, or Texas Home Living Program. The MERP overview is part of the Medicaid Estate Recovery Program Receipt Acknowledgement (Form 8001) as identified in the LIDDA Handbook.

A-13 Permanency Planning Requirements

1.1 Local Intellectual and Development Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall conduct and document permanency planning for individuals under age 22 years enrolling in or currently residing in an intermediate care facility for individuals with an intellectual disability or related conditions or Home and Community-based Services residential setting in accordance with the Health and Human Services Commission rules and the LIDDA Handbook.

1.1.1 LIDDA shall use the following Client Assignment and Registration ("CARE") System XPTR reports to identify the individuals in need of permanency planning and the timeframes for conducting permanency planning:

HC021395 (Permanency Plan Reviews Needed); and HC021393 (PPRS Status by Individual).

1.1.2 Any permanency plan recommendations that include placement in an institution after the initial six-month extension must be reviewed and approved by a secondary reviewer, different than the reviewer providing the placement recommendations.

Such CARE XPTR reports indicate individuals newly identified as needing permanency planning. The Permanency Plan Reviews Needed report also includes the names of individuals whose plan are past due or have never been done. LIDDA has 20 calendar days to conduct permanency planning starting the first business day an individual's name first appears on the report.

A-14 Voter Registration

Article 1. Opportunity to Register to Vote

1.1 Local Intellectual and Development Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall provide individuals 18 years of age or older an opportunity to register to vote upon entry into services, annually, and when notified of an individual's change of address in accordance with the LIDDA Handbook.

Article 2. Ordering Voter Registration Forms from HHSC

2.1 LIDDA may order voter registration forms through Pinnacle Cart.

A-15 Crisis Respite

1.1 The Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall ensure the provision of crisis respite in the LIDDA's local service area accordance with the requirements stated in this section A-15.

1.2 Crisis Respite Plan

1.2.1 LIDDA must submit and maintain a Crisis Respite plan (the "Plan") that ensures the provision of crisis respite to individuals with an Intellectual and Development Disability ("IDD") in LIDDA's local service area. The Plan must:

A. ensure the continuous availability of in-home or out of home crisis respite for individuals with IDD, including whether the LIDDA is responsible for operating crisis respite directly or through subcontract(s).

B. describe how the LIDDA will confirm that a setting utilized for crisis respite pursuant to this section is in compliance with life safety requirements specific to its setting type, if any, and

C. describe the intended location(s), identified by county, and how the LIDDA will staff the location, including but not limited to:

(1) Staffing strategies, taking into account changes in census and specific needs of individuals;

(2) Scheduling; and

(3) Staff qualifications, which at minimum must be consistent with 40 Tex. Admin. Code, $\S2.315(h)(4)$

D. describe how the LIDDA will identify and address adverse trends, such as recidivism.

1.3 Revision to Crisis Respite Plan

1.3.1 LIDDA must revise its Plan to include a description of necessary revisions. Revisions may be based on a reassessment of local needs and/or changes in available resources. *1.3.2* LIDDA must submit the revised Plan electronically within 30 calendar days of proposed changes to designated contract manager.

1.4 Reporting

1.4.1 LIDDA will maintain documentation and report to HHSC:

(a) By the 15th day of the month following each fiscal quarter, information related to crisis respite, using templated provided by HHSC; and

(b) Annually, the crisis respite plan as described in section 1.2.1 of this section.

1.5 Payment

HHSC will pay an amount not to exceed the allocation as provide in the Allocation Schedule to the LIDDA. LIDDA must comply with the Uniform Grant Management Standards and Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, & Audit Requirements for Federal Awards Allowable Costs of this Contract related to allowable cost per the Uniform Grant Management Standards published by the Comptroller of Public Accounts. HHSC will pay an amount not to exceed the allocation to LIDDA to implement the LIDDA's revised crisis respite plan in fiscal year 2022-2023.

A-16 Crisis Intervention Specialist

Article 1. Responsibilities of the LIDDA

1.1 One staff assigned as a lead crisis intervention specialist

1.1.1 The Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall assign one full-time employee or contract employee as a lead crisis intervention specialist to oversee all activities required under this section. The funding for one full-time equivalent crisis intervention specialist for the amount identified on the Allocation Schedule (see Section B, Table 1). LIDDA must ensure the lead crisis intervention specialist is not assigned responsibilities, duties, or tasks other than those described in the LIDDA Handbook.

1.2 Additional Staff

1.2.1 Except as allowed by section 1.2.2, if the LIDDA is allocated funding in excess of one full-time equivalent as identified on the Allocation Schedule, the LIDDA must use the excess funds to assign additional staff to support the lead crisis intervention specialist.

1.2.2 With written approval from the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC"), LIDDA may use allocated funding in excess of one full-time equivalent as identified on the Allocation Schedule to fund the provision of crisis respite in accordance with Crisis Respite. Transfer of funds between Crisis Intervention Services and Crisis Respite allocations may occur within the fiscal year they were allocated, with contract manager approval.

1.3 Qualifications of a crisis intervention specialist and additional staff

1.3.1 LIDDA must ensure a crisis intervention specialist:

A. Meets the preferred qualifications of at least one of the following,

- (1) a licensed behavior analyst;
- (2) a licensed professional counselor;

- (3) a licensed psychologist;
- (4) a licensed marriage and family therapist;
- (5) a licensed master's level or clinical social worker; and
- (6) a Psychiatrist.
- 1.3.2 Meets the minimum qualifications of:

A. A qualified intellectual disability professional as defined in 42 Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR"), §483.430(a); and

B. At least two years of experience working with individuals with IDD who have mental health and behavior support needs or linking people with IDD to mental health supports, in addition to the one year of required experience of a qualified intellectual disability professional described in 42 CFR §483.430(a)(1).

1.3.3 LIDDA must ensure a person who meets minimum qualifications has access to a professional who meets the preferred qualifications as described in section 1.3.1 The professional who meets preferred qualifications must be available for consultation as needed.

1.3.4 LIDDA must ensure additional staff meets the qualifications for a qualified intellectual disability professional as defined in 42 CFR §483.430(a);

1.3.5 LIDDA must ensure a crisis intervention specialist and additional staff be knowledgeable about IDD programs and services in the local service area.

1.4 Reporting

LIDDA will maintain documentation and submit a quarterly report, in a format prescribed by HHSC, in accordance with Section A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar). See LIDDA Handbook for more information.

Pecan Valley MHMR Region ("LIDDA") **B** Budget/Required Local Match

Public Accounts to release to the Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") the funds listed in Tables 1, 3, 4 and 6 to this Section B in accordance with the following schedule: 40% at the commencement of the first quarter, 30% at the commencement of the second quarter, and 15% at the commencement of the third Introduction. The Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") shall authorize the Texas Comptroller of and fourth quarters of the subject fiscal year.

Article 1. Allocation of Funds for LIDDA Services for Fiscal Year 2022

| Table 1. Fiscal Year 2022 Allocation Schedule | Total Not-to-Exceed Fiscal Year 2022 Allocation | \$868,595.17 |
|---|--|--------------|
| | IDD Crisis Respite Services | \$69,808.00 |
| | IDD Crisis Intervention IDD Crisis Respite Specialists Services | \$134,521.00 |
| | Permanency Planning | \$19,784.00 |
| | General Revenue | \$631,707.00 |

| _ |
|------------------|
| - |
| |
| _ |
| _ |
| - |
| - |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| - |
| |
| |
| un |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| - |
| - |
| - |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| - |
| - |
| |
| - |
| _ |
| |
| _ |
| - |
| 2 Allocation |
| |
| - |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| - |
| 0 |
| 0 |
| 0 |
| 2022 |
| 20 |
| 20 |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| fear 20 |
| N |
| N |
| N |
| Year 2 |
| N |
| Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| 1. Fiscal Year 2 |
| Year 2 |

Γ

Table 2. Required Local Match for Fiscal Year 2022

| \$56,853.63 | 6 % | \$631,707.00 |
|-----------------------------|------------|-----------------------------------|
| Required Local Match Amount | Required % | Allocations Requiring Local Match |

Article 2. Other Services for Fiscal Year 2022

| Table 3 | Fiscal Year 2022 Not-to-Exceed Amount | \$12,775.17 | |
|---------|---------------------------------------|--|---|
| Tã | Service Description | Enhanced Community Coordination 9/1/2021-12/31/2021 | Enhanced Community Coordination 1/1/2022-8/31/2022 |

Article 3. Allocation of Funds for LIDDA Services for Fiscal Year 2023

| Schedule |
|-------------|
| Allocation |
| Year 2023 |
| 4. Fiscal \ |
| Table . |

| Total Not-to-Exceed Fiscal Year 2023 Allocation | |
|--|--|
| IDD Crisis Respite Services | |
| IDD Crisis Intervention Specialists | |
| Permanency Planning | |
| General Revenue | |

71

| 982633 |
|-----------|
| 6F7CBD |
| 2-88EE-6 |
| A2-486 |
| EAA-D4 |
| : 75745 |
| velope ID |
| uSign En |
| Doc |

| Required Local Match Amount | |
|-----------------------------------|---------------------------|
| Required % | |
| Allocations Requiring Local Match | |
| | ng Local Match Required % |

Table 5. Required Local Match for Fiscal Year 2023

Article 4. Other Services for Fiscal Year 2023

| Table 6 | Fiscal Year 2023 Not-to-Exceed Amount | | |
|---------|---------------------------------------|--|---|
| Ta | Service Description | Enhanced Community Coordination 9/1/2022-12/31/2022 | Enhanced Community Coordination 1/1/2023-8/31/2023 |

C Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority (LIDDA) Special Conditions

Article 1. Forms

1.1 Manuals, Reports, Exhibits, and Forms

Manuals, reports, exhibits, forms, and the LIDDA Handbook referenced in this Contract are located on the Health and Human Services Commission "(HHSC") website and the LIDDA Handbook. LIDDA shall use the reports and forms required by this Contract as they now exist and as they may now be revised. HHSC will notify LIDDA of revisions to the reports and forms. All manuals, reports, exhibits and forms are incorporated by reference into this Contract.

1.2 Information Items

Information items that may be referenced in this Contract are located at the LIDDA Performance Contract site. These items provide instructions regarding service delivery, reporting requirements and report preparation for this Contract. Nothing in the instructions to the Information items shall be interpreted as changing or superseding the terms of this Contract. All information items are incorporated by reference into this Contract.

1.3 Uniform Grant Management Standards

The Uniform Grant and Contract Management Act of 1981 ("UGMA"), Tex. Gov't Code Chapter 783 and the Uniform Grant Management Standards ("UGMS") referenced in this Contract are located on the Internet at <u>http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/ and</u> <u>https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/grant-management/</u>, respectively.

Article 2. Funding and Expenditures

2.1 Budget

LIDDA shall develop an annual budget, in the format of Report III-IDD, using the amounts indicated in Section B, Tables 1 and 2, (Allocation Schedule and Required Local Match Schedule, respectively), and earn and expend funds according to that budget.

2.2 Local Match

LIDDA shall provide and expend required local match, as defined in the Tex. Health and Safety Code §534.066, in the amount and percentage indicated on Section B, Required Local Match Schedule, for the applicable fiscal year.

2.3 Expenditures

2.3.1 LIDDA shall expend funds allocated by HHSC and required local match (the "contract funds") solely for IDD services and administrative overhead authorized in section 2.4.2 of this section.

2.3.2 LIDDA shall ensure no contract funds are used to supplement the rate-based payment the LIDDA receives to fund its cost as a provider of waiver programs or ICF/IID programs.

2.3.3 LIDDA shall comply in all respects as directed by HHSC with the Uniform Grant Management Standards ("UGMS"), promulgated pursuant to the Uniform Grant and Contract Management Act, Tex. Gov't. Code, Chapter 783.

2.3.4 LIDDA shall obtain prior written approval from HHSC for selected items of cost as specified in UGMS Allowable Costs.

2.3.5 Upon termination or the end of each fiscal year of this Contract, LIDDA shall return to HHSC all funds allocated under this Contract that have not been encumbered for purposes authorized by this Contract. A transfer to the LIDDA's fund balance or reserves is not a purpose authorized by this Contract.

2.3.6 Any payments due under this Contract will be applied towards any debt that the LIDDA owes to the state of Texas.

2.4 Compliance

2.4.1 Program Income

2.4.1.1 LIDDA shall comply with the program income requirements in UGMS.

2.4.1.2 LIDDA shall report all sources of program income that meet the criteria defined in the Instructions for Report III-IDD.

2.4.1.3 LIDDA shall use program income to offset within the General Revenue ("GR") strategies.

2.4.1.4 LIDDA shall use program income to offset expenditures, unless the unrestricted fund balance in the prior year is less than 60 calendar days of operations.

2.4.1.5 LIDDA shall restrict the program income used to build reserves to the 60 calendar days of Operations level to finance expenditures in the GR strategies.

2.4.2 Administrative Overhead

2.4.2.1 LIDDA shall maintain administrative overhead to perform the requirements of this Contract at a rate not to exceed 10% of the Contract funds. If LIDDA's administrative overhead expenses exceed 10%, LIDDA shall use earned income or other funds, other than contract funds, to pay for the excess.

2.4.3 Accounting Systems

2.4.3.1 LIDDA shall maintain accounting systems that comply with UGMS, Subpart C – Post-Award Requirements-Financial Administration. LIDDA must separately report actual expenditures and actual revenues attributable to Mental Health Adult, Mental Health Children, and IDD Programs.

2.4.3.2 LIDDA shall report expenditures by object of expense and method of finance in accordance with the strategies indicated in Report III-IDD. On a quarterly basis, LIDDA is required to reconcile accounting transactions from its general ledger to Report III-IDD by object of expense and method of finance.

2.4.4 Cost Accounting

LIDDA shall use cost accounting to provide a consistent methodology for determining the cost of services, which includes an analysis of provider productivity. Develop and implement management processes for the allocation and development of resources and the oversight of services, as required in sections 2.1 through 2.1.8 relating to Authority Functions (Section A-1, Statement of Work)

2.4.5 Productivity Benchmarks

LIDDA shall develop and maintain productivity benchmarks for each service based on the LIDDA's cost accounting methodology.

2.4.6 Audit

2.4.6.1 Comprehensive Financial and Compliance Audit. LIDDA shall obtain a comprehensive financial and compliance audit for the previous state fiscal year prepared in accordance with Tex. Health and Safety Code §534.068, 40 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 1, Subchapter G, and HHSC's Guidelines for Annual Financial and Compliance Audits of Community MHMR Centers (21st Revision - February 2005) (the "Audit Guidelines"). HHSC's Audit Guidelines, Part 1 Annual Financial Audit, Section III. Engagement of External Auditors, Letter C. Selection of Auditor is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: C. Selection of Auditor. The Board of Trustees is required to obtain a single audit each year and must competitively re-procure single audit services at least once every six years.

2.4.6.2 Single Audit Determination Form. LIDDA shall submit online the Single Audit Determination Form as required by the Inspector General ("IG"), Health and Human Services Commission. If LIDDA fails to complete the Single Audit Determination Form within the 30 days after notification by IG to do so, LIDDA shall be subject to sanctions and remedies for non-compliance with this Contract.

2.4.6.3 Access to Audit. LIDDA shall authorize the Department of State Health Services ("DSHS"), HHSC, and their designees, as the state of Texas through any authorized representatives, to have unrestricted access, with reasonable notice, to all facilities, records, data, and other information, including service event data, under the control of LIDDA or its subcontractors as necessary to enable DSHS and HHSC, and their designees, as well as the state of Texas, to audit, monitor, and review the LIDDA's compliance with the requirements of this Contract.

2.4.7 Reports

2.4.7.1 Enter Accurate and Complete Data. LIDDA shall enter and submit accurate data:

A. Upon submission of this Contract in Report III-IDD:

(1) the budget developed in accordance with Section 2.1 of this section;

(2) projected in-kind local match for this Contract for each fiscal year; and

(3) year of the term of this Contract; and

B. In accordance with Section A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar):

(1) All data necessary to calculate number of persons served, by type of service; and

(2) All data to complete the quarterly Report III-IDD.

2.4.7.2 Submit Accurate and Timely Information. LIDDA shall submit accurate and timely information to HHSC including the information described in Section A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar), as follows:

A. A completed Certification Regarding Lobbying (Form D) and updates as necessary;

B. A copy of the LIDDA's quarterly financial statements for the general fund account groups, including the balance sheet and income statement and general fund balance for LIDDA in total, as prepared for presentation to the LIDDA's governing body, and a certification of the accuracy of such statements, on the Financial Statement Certification (Form G). The originally signed Form G or a copy of the originally signed Form G is acceptable. Form G may be obtained upon request from the IDD Performance Unit Contract Manager;

C. If requested by HHSC, monthly financial data in a format determined by HHSC;

D. When necessary, a request to amend this Contract, on the Contract Amendment Request (Form C). Form C may be obtained up request from the IDD Performance Contracts Unit Contract Manager.

E. Three copies of a comprehensive financial and compliance audit for the previous state fiscal year: one electronic copy to HHSC, and two copies to the Inspector General, Single Audit, Health and Human Services Commission (one hard copy mailed to Inspector General, Compliance/Audit, Mail Code 1326, P.O. Box 85200, Austin, TX 78708 and one sent electronically);

F. A Corrective Action Plan ("CAP") as required in the Audit Guidelines, 21st Revision. If the independent audit reports and management letter have no findings, then submit a letter stating that corrective action is not necessary;

G. Supporting reports, data, work papers, and information, requested by HHSC; and

H. As necessary, all other submissions described in Section A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar).

2.4.7.3 Encounter Data.

(a) LIDDA shall submit timely monthly encounter data files for all IDD services, which has a rejection rate of less than 1% of the total number of records, in accordance to Section A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar).

(b) LIDDA shall submit accurate and comprehensive monthly encounter data for all IDD services, including all required data fields and values, in accordance with the IDD Service Grid Instructions, IDD Service Data Integrity, HHSC Service Grid and Field Definitions as well as procedures and instructions established by HHSC.

(c) LIDDA shall notify contract manager and submit in writing a System Migration Plan for any related client management software system transitions prior to implementation. Plan must clearly outline the timeline for completion and include assurances to ensure all obligations under this section will be maintained. Required status updates may be established by HHSC.

2.4.7.4 Critical Incident Data. LIDDA shall report aggregate critical incident data via CARE Screen 686.

2.4.7.5 CARE. LIDDA shall use Client Assignment and Registration CARE to collect, record, and electronically submit information to HHSC, and to generate reports concerning performance under this Contract, in accordance with the CARE Reference Manual, CARE User's Manual, and CARE Reporting Manual.

2.5 Miscellaneous

2.5.1 LIDDA shall comply with requirements of the 2020 General Appropriations Act, Article IX, §17.02 of the 2020 General Appropriations Act ("GAA"). The following does not limit the Requirements:

(a) GAA, Article IX, Parts 2 and 3, except there is no requirement for increased salaries for LIDDA employees. Upon request, HHSC will provide assistance in determining the appropriate classification. However, no contract funds may be used to fund salaries to the extent they exceed the maximum amount of the employee's classification on the salary schedules for the appropriate salary group;

(b) Performance rewards GAA, Article IX, §6.13, relating to performance rewards and penalties;

(c) GAA, Article IX, §7.01, relating to budgeting and reporting;

(d) GAA, Article IX, §7.02, relating to annual reports and inventories;

(e) Texas Government Code, Chapter 556, relating to political activities by certain public entities and individuals;

(f) Texas Government Code, \$2102.0091, relating to reports of periodic audits; and

(g) Texas Government Code \S 2113.012 and 2113.101, relating to alcoholic beverages.

Article 3. Remedies and Sanctions

3. Overview

Unless indicated otherwise in the Contract, including its sections, the remedies and sanctions set forth below shall apply if the LIDDA is non-compliant with a Contract requirement.

3.1 Remedies.

HHSC may impose one or more of the remedies described below for noncompliance by the LIDDA with a Contract requirement:

3.1.1 Require the LIDDA to submit a Corrective Action Plan ("CAP") to HHSC for approval. LIDDA must submit the CAP to the Contract Manager within 30 calendar days after receiving a notice of deficiency. The CAP must include the following:

(a) The date by which the deficiency will be corrected. For a quality assurance review, the date may not exceed 90 calendar days after the day of the exit conference unless HHSC approves an additional amount of time prior to the expiration date. For any other deficiency, the date may not exceed 90 calendar days after the date of the notice of deficiency unless HHSC approves an additional amount of time prior to the expiration date. HHSC may designate the timeframe to correct the deficiency;

(b) Identification of the party responsible for ensuring the deficiency is corrected;

(c) The actions that have been or will be taken to correct the deficiency; and

(d) A description of the systematic change and monitoring system implemented to ensure the deficiency does not re-occur, including the frequency of the monitoring and the party responsible for monitoring.

3.1.2 Impose special conditions or restrictions following identification of the LIDDA as High Risk, as described in section 3.7 of this section.

3.1.3 Require LIDDA to retain a consultant or obtain technical training or assistance or managerial assistance.

3.1.4 Establish additional prior approvals for expenditure of contract funds.

3.1.5 Require submission of additional, more detailed financial or programmatic reports; and/or

3.1.6 Impose any other remedies provided by law.

3.2 Mandatory Sanctions.

HHSC will impose mandatory sanctions as described below for noncompliance by the LIDDA with the Contract:

3.2.1 Recoup contract funds from the LIDDA, for failing to meet a quarterly Service Target identified in section 2.9.1. Section A-1 (Statement of Work), based on the statewide case rate. The statewide case rate is the ratio of statewide contract funds to total statewide budgeted costs for each target, as determined by HHSC. Services not counted toward service target performance may be considered in determining the LIDDA's liability for recoupment.

3.2.2 Impose penalties for failing to meet a quarterly outcome target for a performance measure identified in Section A-2 (Performance Measures and Outcome Targets) in accordance with the penalty chart in section 3.4.1 of this Section C.

3.2.3 Impose penalties for failing to correct a finding on an annual quality assurance review within the timeframe stated in the CAP that was accepted to correct the finding. HHSC will consider the LIDDA's non-compliance from the previous fiscal years when imposing penalties in this section 3.2.3 in accordance with the penalty chart in section 3.4.1 of this section.

3.2.4 Impose penalties for failing to implement a CAP within the timeframe stated in the CAP that was accepted to correct the LIDDA's failure to submit information in any item described in section 2.4.7.2 A-H and section 2.4.7.3 (a) of this section in accordance with Section A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar). Penalties will be imposed in accordance with the penalty chart in section 3.4.1 of this section; and

3.2.5 Impose penalties for failing to ensure the provision of a required IDD service quarterly as stipulated by section 2.9.2, Statement of Work (Section A-1). in accordance with the penalty chart in section 3.4.1 of this section.

3.3 Discretionary Sanctions.

HHSC may impose one or more of the discretionary sanctions described below for non-compliance with a Contract requirement:

3.3.1 Impose penalties for failing to comply with any contract requirement except those described in sections 3.2.1 - 3.2.5 of this section, in accordance with the penalty chart in section 3.4.1 of this section.

3.3.2 Impose penalties for failing to correct a finding within the timeframe stated in the CAP that was accepted to correct the finding, except for a finding from a quality assurance review as provided for in section 3.2.3 of this section.

3.3.3 Temporarily withhold contract funds pending resolution of issues of non-compliance with contract requirements or indebtedness to the United States or to the state of Texas.

3.3.4 Permanently withhold allocated funds, or require LIDDA to return contract funds for:

- (a) Unallowable, undocumented, inaccurate, or improper expenditures;
- (b) Failure to comply with contract requirements; or
- (c) Indebtedness to the United States or to the state of Texas.
- 3.3.5 Reduce the contract term.
- 3.3.6 Limit allocations to monthly distributions.
- 3.3.7 Require removal of any officer or employee of the LIDDA:

(a) Who has been convicted of the misuse of state or federal funds, fraud, or illegal acts that are a contraindication to continued performance of obligations under this Contract, as determined by HHSC, or

(b) Who has committed an egregious violation of policies and procedures of the terms of this Contract, as determined by HHSC;

3.3.8 Suspend all or part of this Contract. Suspension is, depending on the context, either: (1) the temporary withdrawal of the LIDDA's authority to obligate contract funds pending corrective action by the LIDDA or pending a

decision to terminate or amend this Contract; or (2) an action taken to immediately exclude a person from participating in contract transactions for a period, pending completion of an investigation and such legal or debarment proceedings as may ensue. LIDDA's costs resulting from obligations incurred by the LIDDA during a suspension are not allowable unless expressly authorized by the notice of suspension.

3.3.9 Deny additional or future contracts or renewals with the LIDDA; and

3.3.10 Terminate this Contract, as described in section 3.9 of this section.

3.4 Penalties

3.4.1 HHSC will use the following penalty chart for imposing penalties for mandatory sanctions described in sections 3.2.1-3.2.5 of this section, and for the discretionary sanctions described in section 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 of this section. Adjusted annual allocation means any adjustments made to the total annual allocation that are not one-time funding adjustments. A one-time funding adjustment is an amount that will not be calculated into the next fiscal year's allocation. The penalty chart will be applied separately to each of the eight applicable sanctions listed in Section A-2, Performance Measures and Outcomes.

| LIDDA Total Adjusted Annual Allocation | Failure to Correct |
|--|--------------------|
| Up to \$1.5 million | \$1,000.00 |
| Not to exceed | \$6,000.00 |
| Up to \$3 million | \$2,000.00 |
| Not to exceed | \$12,000.00 |
| Greater than \$3 million | \$3,000.00 |
| Not to exceed | \$18,000.00 |

3.4.2 If LIDDA reaches the "Not to Exceed" amount, HHSC will require the LIDDA's Board of Trustees to pass a resolution to obtain assistance as described in section 3.1.3 of this section. HHSC retains the right to impose discretionary sanctions for additional violations.

3.4.3 Payments to LIDDA may be withheld to satisfy any recoupment or penalty imposed by HHSC.

3.4.4 Penalties may not be paid from contract funds or interest earned from Contract funds.

3.5 Procedures for Remedies and Sanctions

3.5.1 The HHSC Contract Manager will formally notify the LIDDA in writing when a remedy or sanction is imposed, stating the nature of the remedy or sanction imposed. The LIDDA may file, within ten calendar days of receipt of the notice, a written appeal, which must demonstrate that the findings on which the remedy or sanction is based are either invalid or do not warrant the remedy or sanction. A properly filed appeal of the imposition of a remedy or sanction for failure to submit information in accordance with the Performance Contract shall include written proof that the LIDDA submitted the information by the due date. If HHSC determines that a remedy or sanction is warranted, HHSC's decision is final and the remedy or sanction shall be imposed.

3.5.2 The HHSC Contract Manager shall notify LIDDA in writing of HHSC's final determination.

3.5.3 If HHSC's final determination is to uphold the sanction, LIDDA shall remit to HHSC any monetary amounts assessed within 30 calendar days following the date specified in the notice of alleged non-compliance or HHSC's' final determination, whichever date is later, or interest will accrue on the unpaid amounts at the rate of 5% per annum.

3.6 Emergency Action

3.6.1 In an emergency, HHSC will immediately impose a sanction by delivering written notice to LIDDA by any verifiable method when LIDDA's act or omission is endangering or may endanger the life, health, welfare, or safety of an individual. Whether the LIDDA's conduct or inaction is an emergency will be determined by HHSC on a case-by-case basis and will be based upon the nature of the non-compliance or conduct.

3.7 Identification of High Risk

HHSC may identify LIDDA as High Risk in accordance with the UGMS, Grant Administration, Section III, Subpart B, paragraph _.12, Office of Budget and Management Circular A-110, Subpart B, paragraph _.14, and HHSC policies. HHSC will inform LIDDA of the identification as High Risk in writing. HHSC will state the effective date of the identification as High Risk, the nature of the issues that led to the identification as High Risk, and any special conditions or restrictions. The identification as High Risk remains in effect until HHSC has determined that LIDDA has taken corrective action sufficient to resolve the issues that led to the identification as High Risk

3.8 Management Team

3.8.1 HHSC may appoint a manager or management team to manage and operate the LIDDA in accordance with Tex. Health and Safety Code §§534.038-534.040 if the HHSC executive commissioner or his or designee finds that LIDDA or an officer or employee of the LIDDA:

(a) Intentionally, recklessly, or negligently failed to discharge the LIDDA's duties under this Contract;

(b) Misused state or federal money;

(c) Engaged in a fraudulent act, transaction, practice, or course of business;

(d) Endangered or may endanger the life, health or safety of an individual;

(e) Failed to keep fiscal records or maintain proper control over the LIDDA's assets as prescribed by Tex. Gov't. Code, Chapter 783 and this Contract;

(f) Failed to respond to a deficiency in a review or audit;

(g) Substantially failed to operate within the functions and purposes defined in the LIDDA's center plan; or

(h) Otherwise substantially failed to comply with Tex. Health and Safety Code Chapter 534, Subchapter A or HHSC rules.

3.9 Contract Termination

3.9.1 If HHSC determines LIDDA is unable or unwilling to fulfill any of its requirements under this Contract to ensure the provision of services or exercise adequate control over expenditures or assets, HHSC may initiate termination of this Contract in whole or in part, as follows:

(a) HHSC shall provide 30 calendar days written notice of proposed termination to the LIDDA.

(b) LIDDA may request a hearing to appeal the proposed termination;

(c) If LIDDA files a timely request for a hearing, the hearing shall be conducted in accordance with 1 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 357, Subchapter I, and 40 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 91; and

(d) In lieu of contract termination, HHSC may appoint a manager or management team to manage and operate the LIDDA in accordance with Tex. Health and Safety Code §§534.038-534.040.

3.9.2 HHSC and LIDDA may mutually agree to terminate this Contract, in whole or in part.

3.9.3 LIDDA may terminate this Contract in whole and without cause by giving 90 calendar days written notice to HHSC and submitting a transition plan that ensures there is no disruption in services to individuals.

Article 4. Requirements of System Agency

4.1 General Requirements

4.1.1 HHSC will consider requests from the LIDDA to allow 90 calendar days to make significant changes to the LIDDA's information system required by a contract amendment that affects the LIDDA's information system.

4.1.2 HHSC will direct all requests and inquiries concerning this Contract to the LIDDA's Executive Director, or other individual designated as the Point of Contact under section 5.15 of this section.

4.1.3 HHSC will designate an HHSC employee to oversee management of this Contract and to communicate official clarifications to this Contract.

4.1.4 HHSC shall make available technical assistance for services, functions, and other requirements of this Contract, upon written request from the LIDDA's Executive Director and approval by HHSC.

4.1.5 HHSC shall monitor the LIDDA for programmatic and financial compliance with this Contract. Monitoring activities may include, but are not limited, to on-site reviews and desk reviews of documents submitted by the LIDDA and data submitted electronically by the LIDDA. Reviews include elements related to quality assurance, priority population, Medicaid waiver authority requirements, and financial records and reports.

4.1.6 HHSC shall conduct exit conferences with designated representatives of the LIDDA prior to distributing findings by HHSC's monitors, auditors, or other staff conducting audits or reviews; however, HHSC's is not required to conduct exit conferences in cases of investigations involving possible criminal activity.

4.1.7 HHSC shall maintain and make available formats necessary for the LIDDA to complete Report III-IDD and its instructions without amending this Contract.

4.2 Funding and Adjustments

4.2.1 HHSC shall authorize the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts to release funds to the LIDDA in accordance with the schedule in Section B, Table 1.

4.2.2 HHSC may adjust the LIDDA's reported service performance as necessary to correct inaccuracies.

4.2.3 HHSC may adjust the allocation of Contract funds that supports programs refinanced to Medicaid during the term of this Contract.

4.2.4 The annual General Revenue allocations include the state match for Medicaid Administrative Claiming ("MAC") in Section B, Table 2 of this Contract, and HHSC may adjust those amounts if the LIDDA does not fulfill the requirements of the LIDDA's contract for MAC.

4.2.5 The term of this Contract is for two fiscal years as defined in Section III of the Signature Document (Contract Period and Renewal). HHSC contract funds and service targets are appropriated by fiscal year for this Contract. The contract funds and service targets for the second fiscal year will be added to this Contract by a contract amendment prior to the beginning of the second fiscal year.

4.2.6 If the LIDDA is not able to expend the allocations within the fiscal year in a reasonable and allowable manner, as determined by HHSC, then HHSC may, at any time after consultation with the LIDDA, reduce the allocation for the fiscal year and reallocate to other LIDDAs, and may also reduce the allocation for future fiscal years.

4.2.7 Upon termination or the end of each fiscal year of this Contract, LIDDA shall return to HHSC all funds allocated under this Contract that have not been encumbered for purposes authorized by this Contract. A transfer to the LIDDA's fund balance or reserves is not a purpose authorized by this Contract.

4.2.8 Any payments due under this Contract will be applied towards any debt that the LIDDA owes to the state of Texas.

4.3 Non-Compliance by HHSC

If HHSC fails to perform any responsibility set forth in this Contract LIDDA may send notice of such failure to HHSC. HHSC shall respond to the LIDDA in writing within 30 calendar days following receipt of the notice.

Article 5. Miscellaneous Provisions

5.1 Compliance with Information Letters and IDD Services Broadcasts

LIDDA must comply, and required its subcontractors to comply, with System Agency information letters, and IDD Services Broadcasts regarding LIDDAs.

5.2 Compliance with all Laws, Rules and Regulations

LIDDA must comply, and require its subcontractors to comply, with all laws, rules and regulations, current and future, that are applicable to the LIDDA or its subcontractors, including but not limited to, the following:

A. Rules.

(1) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 1-G (Community Centers);

(2) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 2-A (Local Authority Notification and Appeal);

(3) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 2-B (Contracts Management for Local Authorities);

(4) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 2-C (Charges for Community Services);

(5) 40 Tex. Admin. Code §2.151(1)(F) (Most Appropriate Available Treatment Alternative) and §2.152(e) (Special Considerations);

(6) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 2-F (Continuity of Services – State Facilities);

(7) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 2-G (Role and Responsibilities of Local Authority);

(8) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 2-L (Service Coordination for Individuals with Mental Retardation);

(9) 40 Tex. Admin. C 4-A (Protected Health Information);

(10) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 4-C (Rights of Individuals with an Intellectual Disability);

(11) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 4-D (Administrative Hearings under the Health and Safety Code, Title 7, Subtitle D);

(12) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 4-K (Criminal History and Registry; Clearances);

(13) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 4-L (Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation in Local Authorities and Community Centers);

(14) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 5-A (Prescribing of Psychoactive Medication);

(15) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 5-C (Use and Maintenance of TDMHMR Drug Formulary);

(16) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 5-D (Diagnostic Eligibility for Services andSupports — Intellectual Disability Priority Population and Related Conditions);

(17) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 9-D (Home and Community-based Services (HCS) Program);

(18) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 9-E (ICF/ID Programs — Contracting);

(19) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 9-N (Texas Home Living (TxHmL) Program);

(20) 40 Tex. Admin. Code 72-L (MOU-Capacity Assessment for Self-Care and Financial Management);

(21) 26 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 303 (Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR); and

(22) 1 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 383 (Interstate Compact on Mental Health and Mental Retardation).

B. Federal and State Laws

(1) Federal and state anti-discrimination laws as described in section 5.8 of this Section C;

(2) 42 CFR Part 2 (concerning the confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records) and 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (concerning standards for protected health information (i.e., HIPAA regulations); and

(3) Tex. Health and Safety Code Chapter 85 (concerning HIV/AIDS workplace and confidentiality guidelines).

C. Hiring Outside State of Texas

Hiring staff from outside the state of Texas requires a check of the employee misconduct registry or comparable database from the state in which the prospective employee resides. This check must be completed before hire and every year for five years post hire.

Any concerning/questionable information revealed during background checks (formal and informal) must be further investigated prior to hire.

5.3 Changes to Executive Management

LIDDA shall obtain affidavits executed by each board member on Form A, and by the executive director, on Form B, annually and when changes occur.

5.4 Historically Underutilized Business

LIDDA shall make a good faith effort to locate and consider a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB), as defined in Tex. Gov't. Code §2161.001(2), when subcontracting any portion of this Contract, and submit, in accordance with Section-A-8 (IDD Submission Calendar), LIDDA's subcontracts report on the Annual HUB Sub-Contracting Report (Form F). Form F may be obtained upon request from the IDD Performance Contracts Unit Contract Manager.

5.5 Special Terms and Conditions

This Contract may incorporate one or more sections that are enumerated by the letter "H." If this Contract includes such a section, LIDDA hereby agrees to comply with all requirements of that section. To the extent a conflict exits between the section(s) and any other provision of the Contract, LIDDA agrees that HHSC shall resolve the conflict.

5.6 Contract Management

LIDDA shall direct all inquiries and requests to HHSC concerning or required by this Contract, including requests for amendment, to the Contract Manager or other individual designated as a Point of Contact under section 5.12 of this section, unless otherwise provided in this Contract.

5.7 E-Verify

By entering into this Contract, LIDDA certifies and ensures that it utilizes and will continue to utilize, for the term of this Contract, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's e-Verify system to determine the eligibility of:

(a) All persons employed during the contract term to perform duties within Texas; and

(b) All persons (including subcontractors) assigned by the contractor to perform Work pursuant to the Contract.

5.8 Civil Rights

A. LIDDA agrees to comply with state and federal anti-discrimination laws, including:

(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.);

(2) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. §794);

(3) Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.);

(4) Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107);

(5) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1688);

(6) Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. §2011 et seq.); and

(7) HHSC's administrative rules, as set forth in the Texas Administrative Code, to the extent applicable to this Agreement.

LIDDA agrees to comply with all amendments to these laws, and all requirements imposed by the regulations issued pursuant to these laws. These laws provide in part that no persons in the United States may, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, political beliefs, or religion, be excluded from participation in or denied any service or other benefit provided by Federal or State funding, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination.

B. LIDDA agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and its implementing regulations at 45 C.F.R. Part 80 or 7 C.F.R. Part 15, prohibiting a contractor from adopting and implementing policies and procedures that exclude or have the effect of excluding or limiting the participation of individuals in its programs, benefits, or activities on the basis of national origin. Civil rights laws require contractors to provide alternative methods for ensuring access to services for applicants and recipients who cannot express themselves fluently in English. LIDDA agrees to take reasonable steps to provide services and information, both orally and in writing and electronically, in appropriate languages other than English, to ensure that persons with limited English proficiency are effectively informed and can have meaningful access to programs, benefits, and activities.

C. LIDDA agrees to post applicable civil rights posters in areas open to the public informing individuals of their civil rights and including contact information for the HHSC Civil Rights Office. The posters are available on the HHSC website at: <u>http://www.hhsc.state.tx.us/about_hhsc/civil-rights/brochures-posters.shtml</u>

D. LIDDA agrees to comply with Executive Orders 13279 and 13559, and their implementing regulations at 45 C.F.R. Part 87 or 7 C.F.R. Part 16. These provide in part that any organization that participates in programs funded by direct financial assistance from the United States Department of Agriculture or the United States Department of Health and Human Services shall not discriminate against a program beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary on the basis of religion or religious belief. LIDDA must provide written notice to beneficiaries of their rights.

E. Upon request, LIDDA will provide HHSC Civil Rights Office with copies of the LIDDA's civil rights policies and procedures.

F. LIDDA must notify HHSC's Civil Rights Office of any civil rights complaints received relating to its performance under this Contract. This notice must be delivered no more than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of a complaint. This notice must be directed to:

HHSC Civil Rights Office

701 W. 51st Street, Mail Code W206 Austin, Texas 78751 Phone Toll Free: (888) 388-6332 Phone: (512) 438-4313 TTY Toll Free: (877) 432-7232 Fax: (512) 438-5885.

5.9 Survival

The expiration or termination of this Contract shall not affect the rights and obligations of the parties accrued prior to the effective date of expiration or termination and such rights and obligations shall survive and remain enforceable.

5.10 Independent Contractor

In the performance of all services under this Contract, LIDDA shall be deemed to be and shall be an independent contractor of HHSC and, as such, shall not be entitled to any benefits applicable to employees of HHSC. LIDDA shall direct and be responsible for the performance of its employees, subcontractors, joint venture participants, and agents.

LIDDA are materially changed or a significant financial burden is placed on the LIDDA, the parties may negotiate in good faith to amend this Contract.

5.11 References

Captions contained in this Contract are for reference purposes only and do not affect the meaning of this Contract. Unless otherwise noted, all references in this Contract to "days" mean calendar days. A day that is referenced as a "business" day means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day in which HHSC offices located at 701 W. 51st Street, Austin, Texas, are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to be closed.

5.12 Contract Managers

HHSC shall designate a Contract Manager to serve as HHSC's single point of contact for all communications between HHSC's and the LIDDA concerning this Contract. Notwithstanding this provision, HHSC may designate an individual other than the Contract Manager to serve as the single point of contact by notifying the LIDDA in writing of such other designation.

5.13 Transfer of Responsibilities

Upon expiration or termination of this Contract or an element of this Contract, LIDDA and HHSC shall cooperate to the fullest extent possible to ensure the orderly and safe transfer of responsibilities under this Contract to HHSC or other entity designated by HHSC.

5.14 Points of Contact

LIDDA shall designate its executive director to serve as the LIDDA's single point of contact for all communications between LIDDA and HHSC concerning this Contract. Notwithstanding this provision, LIDDA may designate an individual other than the executive director to serve as the single point of contact by notifying HHSC in writing of such other designation.

5.15 Buy Texas

LIDDA shall purchase products and materials produced in the state of Texas when the products and materials are available at a price and delivery comparable to products and materials produced outside of Texas, as required by Texas Government Code §2155.4441.

5.16 Contract Instructions

Instructions clarifying the preparation requirements of this Contract have been developed by HHSC. However, nothing in such instructions shall be interpreted as changing or superseding the terms of this Contract.

5.17 Exchange of Protected Health Information

Except as prohibited by other law, LIDDA and HHSC shall exchange protected health information without consent of individuals in accordance with 45 CFR §164.504(e)(3)(i)(B), Tex. Health and Safety Code §533.009 and 40 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 4, Subchapter A. LIDDA shall disclose information described in Tex. Health and Safety Code §614.017(a)(2) relating to special needs offenders, to an agency described in Tex. Health and Safety Code §614.017(a)(2) relating to that agency, unless LIDDA documents that the information is not allowed to be disclosed under 45 CFR Part 164.

5.18 Books and Records

5.18.1 LIDDA will keep and maintain under GAAP or GASB, as applicable, full, true, and complete records necessary to fully disclose to HHSC, the Texas State Auditor's Office, the United States Government, and their authorized representatives' sufficient information to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of this Contract and all state and federal rules, regulations, and statutes.

5.18.2 Except for the record retention requirements set forth in the HCS and TxHmL Interest List Manual, LIDDA shall maintain legible copies of this Contract and all related documents for a minimum of seven (7) years after the termination of the contract period or seven (7) years after the completion of any litigation or dispute involving the Contract, whichever is later.

All related documents include:

(a) Internal monitoring records of the quality and appropriateness of Medicaid program participation and compliance;

- (b) All accounting and other financial records;
- (c) and personal property leases;
- (d) Policies, manuals, and standard operating procedures;
- (e) Provider credentialing records;
- (f) Records relating to insurance policies;
- (g) Employment records;
- (h) Licenses and certifications;
- (i) Records required by HHSC;
- (j) Subcontracts;
- (k) Records relating to matters in litigation, and
- (I) Claims payment histories.

5.18.3 LIDDA shall collect, record, maintain, and retain information in accordance with Section A-5 (HCS and TxHmL Interest Lists Maintenance) and the HCS and TxHmL Interest List Manual regarding individuals who have requested HCS or TxHmL services.

5.19 Web Link References

The referenced web links in this Contract are subject to change without notice. HHSC will notify LIDDA of changes to web addresses when possible.

5.20 Fraud, Waste and Abuse

LIDDA will promptly notify the Inspector General, Health and Human Services Commission of any suspected fraud, abuse or waste under state or federal law.

5.21 Electronic Signature

LIDDA agrees that if it permits the use of electronic signatures to document any aspect of the provision of services under this Contract, LIDDA will maintain appropriate safeguards to assure the authenticity of the electronic records and signatures. LIDDA agrees that if it permits an electronic signature to be used on a document, LIDDA cannot challenge the authenticity or admissibility of the signature or the document in any audit, review, hearing, or other proceeding conducted by HHSC, the State Auditor's Office, a federal funding source, or a federal or state court.

5.22 Emergency Plan

LIDDA shall develop and maintain an Emergency Plan as prescribed in section 2.10.6 Section A-1, Statement of Work.

5.23 Disposition of Equipment and Controlled Assets

LIDDA shall comply with the Health and Human Services Contract Council's policy regarding definition and disposition of equipment and controlled assets.

5.24 Encryption Software

LIDDA shall use HHSC current encryption software when communicating confidential information with HHSC. HHSC will provide notice to the LIDDA if it changes its encryption software.

5.25 Eligibility to Contract

LIDDA shall certify by execution of this Contract that LIDDA:

(a) Is not currently held in abeyance or barred from the award of a federal or state contract, and that LIDDA will provide immediate written notification to HHSC if the LIDDA becomes held in abeyance or barred from the award of a federal or state contract during the term of this Contract; and

(b) Under section 2261.053, Tex. Gov't. Code, the contractor (LIDDA) certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Contract is not ineligible to receive the to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that this contract may be terminated, and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.

5.26 Confidentiality

By signing the Signature Document, LIDDA agrees to comply with all terms, conditions and requirements of the Data Use Agreement ("DUA"). The DUA defined terms "HHS," "Base Contract" and "Contractor," refer to HHSC, this Performance Contract, and LIDDA, respectively.

LIDDA and any of its subcontractors associated with this contract, will ensure the confidentiality of all confidential and personal information of all individuals served under this contract in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations and the terms and conditions of this contract.

D-1 Assurances - Non-Construction Programs

OMB Number: 4040-0007 Expiration Date: 02/28/2022

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

- 1.Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.
- Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award;

and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

- Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.
- Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.

- Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- Will comply with all Federal statutes 6. relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C.§§16811683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U. S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and

Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (q) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee- 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and, (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in

real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.

- Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.
- 9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis- Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327- 333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.
- 10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is \$10,000 or more.
- Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality

control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93205).

- Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.
- Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106

of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.).

- Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.
- 15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.
- 16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

- 17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133,"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
- Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.
- 19. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.

| SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL Cr DocuSigned by: mission to Grants.gov Cole Beatly 2E5A600ACEAD435 | TITLE Executive Director |
|--|--|
| APPLICANT ORGANIZATION | DATE SUBMITTED |
| Pecan Valley MHMR Region | Completed on submission to Grants.gov July 8, 2021 |

D-2 Certification Regarding Lobbying

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions. Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the

required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

| *APPLIC, NT'C CICC, MALATION Pecan Valley MHMR Region | | | |
|--|-------------------------------|--|--|
| *PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESE Prefix: *First Name: Coke *Last Name: Beatty *Title: Executive Director | ENTATIVE Middle Name: Suffix: | | |
| *Signature: | *Date: July 8, 2021 | | |

F-1 Training for Board of Directors

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

Alamo Area Council of Governments

1.1 The Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall ensure each member of the board of directors receives training as follows:

A. Before assuming office, new members must receive initial training, including, but not limited to:

i. The importance of local planning and the roles and functions of the Planning and Network Advisory Committee ("PNAC"), LIDDA staff, and other service organizations (e.g., food banks, community transit, other state agencies, advocacy groups);

ii. The current philosophies and program principles on which IDD service delivery systems are founded, information about the service and support needs of people with Intellectual and Developmental Disability ("IDD") and related conditions, and the range of environments in which those services may be delivered;

iii. An overview of IDD and related conditions;

iv. An overview of the current local and state service delivery system, including descriptions of the types of IDD services;

v. The requirements of laws concerning conflict of interest and other laws relating to public officials; and

vi. State and federal laws, rules, standards, and regulations applicable to an LIDDA.

B. Utilizing input from persons who have received or are receiving IDD services, their family members, and advocates, the training programs must provide orientation in the perspectives and issues of persons receiving services.

C. Annual training must be provided for current board of directors' members, which is administered by the professional staff of the LIDDA, including the LIDDA's legal counsel.

D. In order to have a well-informed and effective board of directors, the LIDDA is encouraged to utilize meaningful, creative, and innovative techniques in its training program. The following guidelines may be useful in designing a training program that will enhance the competency and productivity of the board of directors:

i. LIDDA shall develop with its program staff and legal counsel an annual training program for its board of directors; and

- ii. Training methodologies may include:
 - (a) presentations by staff at regular board sessions;
 - (b) on-site program visits;
 - (c) statewide and regional training conferences;
 - (d) seminars to enhance team building skills;

(e) regional and cross-training with community centers and their boards of trustees; and

- (f) formal and informal meetings with tenured board members.
- iii. Suggested training topics:
 - (a) risk management;
 - (b) budget analysis;
 - (c) individual rights;
 - (d) strategic planning; and
 - (e) new legislative and contractual requirements for LIDDAs.

E. LIDDA shall maintain records of the training received by each board member.

F. Periodically, current board members should take refresher courses which contain the information provided to new members.

G. The board training program should include information on the evolution of IDD services in Texas and nationwide (at least from 1950 to the present) and current trends that forecast the design of the IDD service system in the future.

H. LIDDA should educate its board of directors on the degree to which current local IDD services meet actual or projected demand for such services.

I. LIDDA should promote board members' appreciation of individual-based issues in the policymaking process by facilitating board members' access to individuals, families, and advocates.

J. LIDDA shall evaluate and update its training program on a regular basis using input from advocates and individuals.

K. Board members should be instructed on existing mechanisms by which they may evaluate the quality of IDD services delivered locally.

F-2 LIDDA Residential Services Funded by General Revenue for FY 2022 and FY 2023

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD ("LIDDA") will provide Residential Services to Recipient No.1. Residential Services are described in Section A-3 (Description of IDD Services). Such services will be funded by state General Revenue ("GR") in the not to exceed amount of \$35,111.00 for fiscal year 2022 and \$35,111.00 for fiscal year 2023.

Recipient No. 1 has been de-identified in this section to ensure the confidentiality of identifying information in accordance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), 42 U.S.C. § 1320(d) et. seq., which requires the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") to protect the confidentiality of personal health information and other personal identifiers. HHSC will send under separate cover a key to LIDDA to identify Recipient No.1

Residential services are not transferable to any other recipient or individual. If Recipient No. 1 is discharged from Residential Services, LIDDA will terminate Recipient's Residential Services assignment in the Client Assignment and Registration ("CARE") system and ensure the remaining balance is transferred to fund non-residential IDD community services and supports, unless the recipient enrolls into the Home and Community-based Services Program based on refinancing of the recipient's GR funded Residential Services.

If Recipient No.1 dies, LIDDA must, within 24 hours after the death, report the death to the HHSC Performance Contract manager. LIDDA must also cooperate with any HHSC investigation or review of the Recipient No.1's death.

The reporting mechanisms are the open assignments in CARE for Residential Services (R031, R032, R033) and CARE XPTR report HC029191 which will be monitored monthly by HHSC. The expected outcome is to limit the provision of Residential Services funded by GR to only those recipients approved by HHSC. HHSC is phasing out Residential Services funded with GR. Monthly progress notes regarding Residential Services are due to HHSC the 15th of every month for the previous month of services provided.

F-3 LIDDA Residential Services Funded by General Revenue for FY 2022 and FY 2023

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

Austin Travis County MHMR Center

Austin Travis County MHMR Center ("LIDDA") will provide Residential Services with General Revenue ("GR") for the identified recipients in the given amount which will not exceed that amount per state fiscal year. Residential Services are described in Section A-3 (Description of IDD Services).

The recipients whose Residential Service costs are the subject of this section will be referred to as "Recipient 1" and "Recipient 2" to ensure the confidentiality of identifying information under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), 42 U.S.C. § 1320(d) et. seq., which requires the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") to protect the confidentiality of personal health information and other personal identifiers. HHSC will send a key to their identity to the LIDDA under separate cover.

| Austin Travis County MHMR Center | | |
|----------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|
| Recipient # | not to exceed total amount FY 2022 | |
| Recipient #1 | \$87,721 | |
| Recipient #2 | \$30,134 | |

| Austin Travis County MHMR Center | | |
|----------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|
| Recipient # | not to exceed total amount FY 2023 | |
| Recipient #1 | \$87,721 | |
| Recipient #2 | \$30,134 | |

These Residential Services are not transferable to any other recipient or individual. If the recipients listed above are discharged from Residential Services, LIDDA will terminate the recipient's Residential Services assignment in the Client Assignment and Registration ("CARE") and ensure the remaining balance is transferred to fund non-residential IDD community services and supports, unless the recipient enrolls into the Home and Community-based Services Program based on refinancing of the recipient's GR funded Residential Services. If a recipient dies, LIDDA must, within 24 hours after the death, report the death to the HHSC Performance Contract manager. LIDDA must also cooperate with any HHSC investigation or review of the recipient's death.

The reporting mechanisms are the open assignments in CARE for Residential Services (R031, R032, R033) and CARE XPTR report HC029191 which will be monitored monthly by HHSC. The expected outcome is to limit the provision of Residential Services funded by GR to only those recipients approved by HHSC.HHSC is phasing out Residential Services funded with GR. Monthly progress notes regarding residential services are due to the HHSC the 15th of every month for the previous month of services provided.

F-4 Community Living Options Information Process Special Terms and Conditions

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

Abilene Regional MHMR Center

Alamo Area Council of Governments

Austin Travis County MHMR Center

Burke Center

Denton County MHMR Center

El Paso MHMR

Heart of Texas Region MHMR Center

Lubbock Regional MHMR Center

MHMR Authority of Brazos Valley

MHMR Services for the Concho Valley

Nueces County MHMR Community Center

Texana Center

Tropical Texas Center for MHMR

1.0 Community Living Options Information Process (CLOIP). In accordance with 40 TAC, §2.274 and the LIDDA Handbook, Community Living Options Information Process ("CLOIP") activities are performed by the contract LIDDA to provide information and education about community living options to a person who is 22 years of age or older residing in a State Supported Living Center ("SSLC") or to the person's Legally Authorized Representatives ("LAR").

1.1 Standardized Information Materials

1) Contract LIDDAs will provide and explain the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") <u>Explanation of IDD Services and Supports</u> publication and the <u>Long Term Services and Supports</u> publication to all individuals or Legally Authorized Representatives ("LAR").

2) In addition to the required material in the preceding paragraph, Contract LIDDAs will provide and explain other informational and educational materials developed and approved by HHSC that provide a more complete explanation of specific types of services. Educational and informational materials will be user-friendly and in a format that provides for easy interpretation and can include written, audio, Power Point, CD or DVD formats. The style and substance of the materials are crucial to education and awareness. Communication devices and techniques (including the use of sign language) will be used, as appropriate, to facilitate the involvement of the individual and LAR.

3) HHSC will provide coordination, support and funding for these standardized materials.

4) HHSC will assure the development of curriculum and the provision of training for Contract LIDDA and SSLC staff regarding the CLOIP, the developed materials and their use.

5) Designated LIDDAs, upon request by the Contract LIDDA, will provide information about specific programs and services available where the individual or their LAR, on behalf of the individual, is interested in living. This may include, but is not limited to, specific information about services, supports and providers in the local service area. Designated LIDDAs may provide the information directly to the individual and LAR or to the Contract LIDDA.

6) In addition to materials described above, individuals and/or LAR will be offered the opportunity to visit living options available in the community and to visit with individuals/peers using these options with their prior consent.

F-5 Management Services Agreement

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

Texana Center

This agreement for Management Services is between Texana Center ("LIDDA") and the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") (the "Agreement"). HHSC and LIDDA, each a "Party," collectively, the "Parties." Under this Agreement, LIDDA hereby agrees to manage and operate the following Intermediate Care Facility for persons with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities ("ICF/IID") or Behavior Treatment & Training Center ("BTTC") (the "Facilities"):

| Contract Number | Name of Facility | Address |
|--------------------|--|--|
| 1001858 | Willow Glen Behavior Treatment & Training Center (BTTC) | 1818 Collins St. Richmond, TX 77469 |
| 1001857 | Pin Oak Behavior Treatment & Training Center (BTTC) | 1818 Collins St. Richmond, TX 77469 |

The Facilities are certified by HHSC as an ICF/IID to provide ICF/IID services. HHSC has entered into a Medicaid Provider Agreement for the Provision of ICF/IID Services ("ICF/IID Agreement") with HHSC's Regulatory Services Division.

The Parties therefore agree as follows:

I. Obligations of LIDDA

1.1 LIDDA must:

A. Provide short-term ICF/IID services to residents, in accordance with the ICF/IID Agreement. Short-term will be defined for each resident but will typically be no more than six months. The term "residents," as used in this Agreement, means persons who have been determined by HHSC to be eligible for ICF/IID services in the Facilities on the date the services are provided. Residents shall be limited to children between the age of 8 through 17:

1. Who have intellectual or developmental disabilities or pervasive developmental disorder;

2. Who are eligible for an ICF/IID level of care;

3. Who reside in the community with their parents or in a group home;

4. Whose family or group home commits to taking them back upon discharge;

5. Who demonstrate serious maladaptive behaviors, as determined by BTTC Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) assessment prior to admission;

6. Who are determined by the BTTC IDT to be in need of active treatment, a decision by the BTTC IDT whether BTTC can provide for the child's needs and whether the child is likely to benefit from placement at the BTTC; and

7. Whose families or group home personnel commit to participation in assessment, treatment and training while the child is in placement to enable maintenance of effects.

B. Make no charge to the resident, any member of the resident's family or to any other source for any item or services, except LIDDA may collect from a resident only the monthly amount of applied income specified on the resident's payment plan developed by the resident's Medicaid eligibility worker.

C. Establish and maintain continuous certification of the facility from HHSC.

D. Submit to HHSC, by the 10th day of each month, an occupancy report which includes the name, social security number, level of need, and dates of service, for each resident who received services at the facility during the preceding month.

E. Purchase and maintain during the term of this Agreement liability insurance in the amount of at least \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$3,000,000 in the annual aggregate, naming HHSC as an additional insured, insuring against professional errors and omissions in providing ICF/IID services covered by this Agreement. LIDDA must also assure all professionals employed by or under contract with the LIDDA to render ICF/IID services to residents, procure and maintain professional liability insurance, unless they are covered under LIDDA's insurance policies. Prior to or within 30 calendar days following the execution of this Agreement by the LIDDA and at each policy renewal thereafter, the LIDDA must submit to HHSC, in writing, evidence of insurance coverage. LIDDA must further notify HHSC, in writing, within 30 calendar days of any change, termination or cancellation of insurance coverage required under this provision.

F. Notify HHSC, within one business day of the content of all final exit conferences regarding the facilities with HHSC surveyors.

G. Provide HHSC a copy of all final plans of correction submitted to HHSC surveyors in response to cited deficiencies, within three business days of submission to the HHSC surveyors.

H. Submit timely claims, in accordance with the ICF/IID Provider Manual, on behalf of the IDD Services Division to the Texas Medicaid and Healthcare Partnership ("TMHP") for ICF/IID services provided at the Facilities. LIDDA will not submit claims for payment for ICF/IID services provided to more than the number of residents for whom each Facility is certified.

I. Hold harmless HHSC, its officers, employees and agents from all suits, actions, claims, costs or liability of any character, type or description, including attorneys' fees and legal expenses, brought, made for or on account of any death, injury or damage received or sustained by any person or property arising out of or occasioned by the acts or omissions, including the negligence, of the LIDDA or the LIDDA's agents or employees in the execution or performance or this Agreement.

J. Permit representatives, agents of HHSC, Office of the Attorney General Medicaid Fraud, and United States Health and Human Services, to have unrestricted access to all residents and to the premises, facility, records, data and other information under the control of LIDDA as necessary to enable these agencies to audit, monitor and review all financial and programmatic activities and services of the facilities.

K. Comply with all applicable terms and conditions of the ICF/IID contract, including but not limited to requirements relating to access to the premises, maintenance of records, individual trust funds, and compliance with federal and state laws and regulations and HHSC rules. If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with any provision in the ICF/IID Agreement, the provision of this Agreement controls.

L. Comply and require its subcontractor and providers to comply with all requirements of the Data Use Agreement, of the Performance Contract.

M. LIDDA must submit all financial records requested by HHSC immediately upon request.

N. Only receive and disclose individually identifiable health information ("health information") to carry out LIDDA's duties relating to treatment, payment or health care operations, as defined in 45 CFR §164.501, and as required under this Agreement. When using or disclosing health information or when requesting health information from another entity, LIDDA must make reasonable efforts to limit the health information to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure or request.

O. Agrees acceptance of funds under this contract acts as acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor's Office, or any successor agency, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. LIDDA further agrees to cooperate fully with the State Auditor's office or its successor in the conduct of the audit or investigation, including providing all records requested. LIDDA will ensure this clause, concerning the authority to audit funds received indirectly by subcontractors through the LIDDA and the requirement to cooperate, is included in any subcontract it awards. LIDDA will reimburse the state of Texas for all costs associated with enforcing this provision.

P. Report to IDD Services Division, Performance Contract Unit, through the HHSC Automated Enrollment and Billing System, within 30 calendar days following the end of each calendar month, all medication errors, behavior intervention plans authorizing restraints, emergency personal, mechanical and chemical restraints, and residents requiring emergency restraints, by type, for that calendar month.

Q. Submit to IDD Services Division, Performance Contract Unit, a listing of the data elements maintained for consumers seeking the services and how this data will be formatted and made available to HHSC; and the following data on a quarterly basis:

1. Number and percentage of total persons discharged that came from and returned to their family home.

2. Number and percentage of total persons discharged that came from and returned to their group home.

3. Number and percentage of total discharged persons that went to a state school upon discharge.

4. Number and percentage of total persons discharged that went to some other placement with the name and type of location specified.

5. Number and percentage of total persons discharged to home that stayed at least six months in their family home after discharge.

6. Number and percentage of total persons discharged to group home that stayed at least six months in their group home after discharge.

7. Number and percentage of total persons discharged to home that stayed at least 12 months in their family home after discharge.

8. Number and percentage of total persons discharged to group home that stayed at least 12 months in their group home after discharge.

9. Number and percentage of all discharges that are in a state supported living center at the end of one year after discharge.

10. LIDDA will keep and maintain under GAAP or GASB, as applicable, full, true, and complete records necessary to fully disclose to the HHSC, the Texas State Auditor's Office, the United States Government, and their authorized representatives sufficient information to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all state and federal rules, regulations, and statutes. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, LIDDA will maintain legible copies of this Agreement and all related documents for a minimum of seven years after the termination of the contract period or seven years after the completion of any litigation or dispute involving the Agreement, whichever is later.

II. Obligations of HHSC

2.1 HHSC must:

A. Subject to section II.B of this section, pay the LIDDA monthly to provide ICF/IID services to residents the LIDDA's estimated actual costs, in the amounts of \$693.52 per resident per day for Pin Oak BTTC and \$690.34 per resident per day for Willow Glen BTTC;

B. Reconcile all payments made under section II.A of this section to the LIDDA's actual costs, based on the LIDDA's audited Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 Medicaid ICF/IID cost reports (the "LIDDA's actual costs"). If HHSC determines that any payments made to the LIDDA under section II.A of this section exceeded the LIDDA's actual costs, HHSC will notify the LIDDA of such determination, and the LIDDA will remit to IDD Services Division, Performance Contract Unit, the difference between the payments made under section II.A of this section and the LIDDA's actual costs. Such remittance will be due within 60 calendar days following LIDDA's official notification by HHSC of the amounts due;

C. Provide to the LIDDA copies of notices and reports received from HHSC regarding the Facilities' certification or contract status, within 24 hours of receipt by HHSC;

D. Provide to the LIDDA written notification of rate changes initiated by HHSC; and

E. Make the quality assurance fee payments and submit the required quality assurance fee reports. HHSC may disallow and recoup funds used for activities not in compliance with this Agreement.

III. Mutual Agreements

A. Payment by HHSC to LIDDA under this Agreement is contingent upon the receipt of payment by HHSC, under the ICF/IID Agreement.

B. This Agreement may be terminated as follows:

1. By agreement between HHSC and the LIDDA;

2. By the LIDDA upon 60 calendar days' written notice to HHSC of the LIDDA's intent to terminate this Agreement;

3. By HHSC upon 60 days' written notice to the LIDDA if the LIDDA fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement;

4. By HHSC upon thirty days written notice to the LIDDA if a facility is placed on vendor hold twice within an 18-month period;

5. By HHSC, if federal or state laws, rules, or regulations are enacted, amended, repealed, of judicially interpreted so as to render the fulfillment of

this Agreement by either party unfeasible or impossible and HHSC and the LIDDA cannot agree upon amendments to this Agreement necessary to comply with such changes to laws, rules or regulations;

6. By HHSC if the ICF/IID contract is cancelled; or

7. By HHSC when the life, health, welfare, or safety of the residents are endangered.

C. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Parties will be discharged from any further obligation created under the terms of this Agreement, except for the equitable settlement of the respective accrued interests or obligations incurred prior to termination. Termination is not, however, a waiver of any remedies for breach of this Agreement.

D. Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to require HHSC to enter into a new agreement with the LIDDA, or to renew or extend this Agreement.

E. This Agreement is not transferable or assignable by LIDDA.

F. The term of this Agreement is the 1st day of September 2021, through the 31st day of August 2023

G. If any provision of this Agreement becomes unenforceable or void, such event will not invalidate any other provision of this Agreement.

H. The venue for any cause of action initiated by HHSC or LIDDA related to this Agreement will be Travis County, Texas.

I. Any notice, acknowledgment, or disclosure required to be given to HHSC by the LIDDA must be in writing and delivered in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested to the following individual and addresses:

<u>Mailing:</u> Health & Human Services Commission IDD Services, Performance Contracts Unit Attn: Performance Contracts Unit Manager 701 West 51st Street, MC-W354 Austin, TX 78751

Any notice required to be given to the LIDDA by the IDD Services Division, Performance Contracts Unit under this Agreement must be in writing and delivered in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by facsimile transmission, to the LIDDA's address. All notices given in accordance with this paragraph shall be effective on the date of delivery.

J. Per HHSC discussion and review with LIDDA regarding cost reduction at BTTC, HHSC and LIDDA agree to the LIDDA proposal for reduced expenses/revenues for BTTC which totaled \$129,930.00.

F-6 Participation in the Rural Border Intervention Project Special Terms and Conditions

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

Border Region MHMR Community Center

Camino Real Community MHMR Center

Coastal Plains Community MHMR Center

El Paso MHMR

Hill Country Community MHMR Center

Permian Basin Community Centers for MHMR

Tropical Texas Center for MHMR

West Texas Centers for MHMR

1.1 The Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority ("LIDDA") shall participate in the Rural Border Intervention Project (the "Project"), created through the Department of State Health Services ("DSHS") Border Health Office. The Project is dedicated to reducing consumer, environmental, occupational, and community health hazards along the Texas-Mexico border and in low-income residential areas along the border (i.e., colonias) through a bi-national program that coordinates with local providers and community leaders.

1. 2 LIDDA shall:

1.2.1 Provide general revenue funded Intellectual and Developmental Disability ("IDD") services, in accordance with the LIDDAs FYs 2022 and 2023 Performance Contract to residents of the colonias as funding permit.
1.2.2 Report to the Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") through DSHS with respect to residents of any colonias within 62 miles of the Texas – Mexico border who were provided general revenue funded IDD services by the LIDDA:

(a) the number of unduplicated individuals per month who were provided general revenue funded IDD services by LIDDA, and who are residents of the colonias;

(b) using the DSHS Rural Border Intervention Project, Direct Client Services Report, Form E; and

(c) submitting the form electronically to

performance.contracts@hhsc.state.tx.us on or before the following dates, following the end of each fiscal year quarter:

| FY | Qtr. | Month and Year | Due Date |
|------|------|----------------|------------|
| 2021 | 1 | December 2021 | 12/20/2021 |
| 2021 | 2 | March 2022 | 3/20/2022 |
| 2022 | 3 | June 2022 | 6/19/2022 |
| 2022 | 4 | September 2022 | 9/21/2022 |
| 2023 | 1 | December 2022 | 12/19/2022 |
| 2023 | 2 | March 2023 | 3/19/2023 |
| 2023 | 3 | June 2023 | 6/19/2023 |
| 2023 | 4 | September 2023 | 9/19/2023 |

F-7 Transition Support Services

This section pertains only to the following LIDDA(s):

Alamo Area Council of Governments

Austin Travis County MHMR Center

Dallas County MHMR Center

El Paso MHMR

Lubbock Regional MHMR Center

MHMR of Tarrant County

Nueces County MHMR Community Center

Texana Center

1.1 Transition Support Teams

A. For Designated Service Areas ("DSAs") defined in section 1.2 (B) of this section and subject to Health and Human Services Commission ("HHSC") approval, the contracted LIDDA will implement a medical, behavioral, and psychiatric support program (the "Program"). The Program will provide support activities to Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authorities (LIDDAs), and Home and Community-based Services ("HCS") and Texas Home Living ("TxHmL"),Community Living Assistance Support Services (CLASS), Deaf Blind with Multiple Disabilities (DBMD), LMHA/LBHA services, program providers (Providers) that serve individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD) at risk of admission into an institutional setting, and those who have moved from an institutional setting, including State Supported Living Centers ("SSLCs") and Nursing Facilities ("NFs") (collectively, the "Individuals").

1. The contracted LIDDA will develop a Program plan, to be submitted to and approved by HHSC, for implementing the Program and constituting a team of professionals ("Team") as described in section 1.3 of this section.

2. The Program will be designed to assist LIDDAs and Providers in providing effective services and supports to assist Individuals avoid institutionalization.

3. The contracted will ensure the Team provides the following program activities:

(a) Educational events and materials, such as webinars, videos and other correspondence, focused on increasing the expertise of LIDDA and Provider staff in supporting the individuals described above;

(b) Technical assistance, upon request from LIDDAs and providers, on specific disorders and diseases, with examples of best practices and evidence-based services for individuals with significant medical, behavioral and psychiatric challenges; and

(c) De-identified (as necessary) case-specific peer review support to service planning teams that need assistance planning and providing effective care for an individual.

1.2 Designated Service Area ("DSA")

A. The contracted LIDDA will provide the Program in the DSA that consists of the local service areas of the following LIDDAs:

| Transition Support Team | | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Designated LIDDA El Paso MHMR | MHMR Services for the Concho Valley El Paso MHMR Permian Basin Community Centers for MHMR West Texas Centers for MHMR | | |
| Designated LIDDA Lubbock Regional MHMR Center | Central Plains Center for MHMR Services Lubbock Regional MHMR Center Texas Panhandle MHMR | | |
| Designated LIDDA MHMR of Tarrant County | Abilene Regional MHMR Center Central Texas MHMR Center Helen Farabee Centers Pecan Valley MHMR Region MHMR of Tarrant County | | |
| Designated LIDDA Dallas County MHMR Center | Anderson-Cherokee Community Enrichment Services Andrews Center Burke Center Sabine Valley Regional MHMR Center Dallas County MHMR Center Denton County MHMR Center Lakes Regional MHMR Center | | |

| | Collins County MHMR Center Human Services of Southeast Texas, Inc. Texoma Community Centers |
|--|--|
| Designated LIDDA Austin Travis County MHMR Center | Austin Travis County MHMR Center Bluebonnet Trails Community MHMR Center MHMR Authority of Brazos Valley Central Counties Center for MHMR Services Heart of Texas Region MHMR Center |
| Designated LIDDA Alamo Area Council of Governments | Alamo Area Council of Governments Hill Country Community MHMR Center Camino Real Community MHMR Center Gulf Bend MHMR Center |
| Designated LIDDA Nueces County MHMR Community Center | Border Region MHMR Community Center Coastal Plains Community MHMR Center Nueces County MHMR Community Center Tropical Texas Center for MHMR |
| Designated LIDDA Texana Center | The Gulf Coast Center The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD Texana Center Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare |

B. Contracted LIDDA will enter into an agreement with each of the LIDDAs identified in section 1.2 (A) of this section to serve as the representative for each of those LIDDAs local service areas. Additionally, under this agreement the contracted LIDDA will designate a medical specialist that will serve as each of these LIDDA's medical specialist to provide technical assistance and support, as needed by the DSA team coordinator who will coordinate psychiatric, behavioral, and other technical assistance as needed

1.3 Staff Resources

A. The contracted LIDDA will:

1. Assign a full time equivalent licensed health-related professional, such as a clinical social worker, to serve as the team coordinator.

2. Designate additional licensed health related professionals with expertise working with individuals with IDD to support the DSA such as:

(a) Physicians;

(b) Physician's Assistants;

(c) Nurse Practitioners,

- (d) Registered Nurses;
- (e) Psychiatrists;
- (f) Psychologists; and,
- (g) Behavioral Specialists.

1.4 Stakeholder Input

A. Contracted LIDDA will appoint a stakeholder committee that will:

1. Provide input to the contracted LIDDA on the provision of the Program and assist in determining the needs of the LIDDAs and Providers in the DSA regarding the Program.

2. The stakeholder committee must include at least one of each of the following member types and include membership from each LIDDA in the DSA:

- (a) Person receiving LIDDA, HCS, or TxHmL services;
- (b) Family member of a person receiving LIDDA, HCS, or TxHmL services;
- (c) Provider; and
- (d) Advocacy organization.

1.5 Annual Stakeholder Survey

Contracted LIDDA will conduct an annual survey of the LIDDAs and Providers in the DSA to determine the satisfaction with the educational opportunities, technical assistance, and case reviews provided under the Program.

1.6 Performance Measures

A. Contracted LIDDA will meet the following performance measures:

1. Contracted LIDDA will provide support based on the collaboration with the stakeholder committee, LIDDAs, and providers within the DSA, at least once per quarter with its Program activities.

2. Contracted LIDDA will communicate communication to the LIDDAs and Providers in the DSA, in a manner that:

(a) Informs them of the availability of all program services such as the type of educational opportunities, at least once quarterly; and

(b) Outlines how to request any program activity, at least once quarterly.

3. The contracted LIDDA will provide an initial response within three business days of receipt of a requested program activity and subsequently follow up to provide educational opportunities, technical assistance, and case reviews related to the request.

1.7 Reporting

A. As described below, contracted LIDDA will maintain documentation and provide reporting by the 15th day of the month following each fiscal quarter:

1. A quarterly report related to the educational opportunities, technical assistance and case reviews provided through the Program containing:

(a) The name of the individual or entity requesting program activity, technical assistance and case review;

(b) The number and type of program activities and the date the request was submitted;

(c) The date the program activity was initiated;

(d) The attendance roster for each educational opportunity, and case reviews provided; and

(e) A quarterly expenditure report in a format developed in conjunction with and approved by HHSC.

2. An annual report containing the results of the survey conducted as described in Section 1.5 of this section.

1.8 Payment

A. HHSC will pay an amount not to exceed the allocation to the contracted LIDDA to provide the Program described above. Funds will be paid in compliance with The OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("UGG").

1. Under these federal requirements, the contracted LIDDA may request that payment be provided in advance or may submit requests for reimbursement of costs.

(a) Under 2 CFR §200.305, Reimbursement is the preferred method when the requirements in paragraph (b) cannot be met, when the federal awarding agency sets a specific condition per §200.207 (Specific Conditions), or when a non-federal entity requests payment by reimbursement. Requests for advance payment are subject to the financial management standards test and requirements established by UGG. An advance payment request must:

i. be limited to cash needed to meet the immediate needs of the grant project;

ii. minimize time between advances and payments for grants activities; and

iii. must be deposited in a separate interest-bearing account and interest earned on grant funds must be returned to the federal government.

(b) If the contracted LIDDA requests reimbursement for costs, contracted LIDDA must submit an invoice, on or before the 15th day of the following month, on a template provided by HHSC and include supporting documentation as described by HHSC. Section G Health and Human Services (HHS) Uniform Terms and Conditions -Governmental Entity

Version 3.2

Published and Effective -

May 2020

Responsible Office: Chief Counsel

Texas Health and Human

Services



TEXAS Health and Human Services

Table of Contents

| Table of Contents | . 2 |
|--|-----|
| Article I. Definitions and Interpretive Provisions | 3 |
| Article II. Payment Provisions | 6 |
| Article III. State and Federal Funding | 7 |
| Article IV. Warranty, Affirmations, Assurances, and Certifications | 9 |
| Article V. Intellectual Property | 10 |
| Article VI. Property | 13 |
| Article VII. Record Retention, Audit, and Confidentiality | 15 |
| Article VIII. Contract Remedies and Early Termination | 17 |
| Article IX. General Provisions | 19 |

Article I. Definitions and Interpretive Provisions

1.1 Definitions

As used in this Contract, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following terms and conditions have the meanings assigned below:

"Amendment" means a written agreement, signed by the Parties, which documents changes to the Contract.

"Contract" means the Signature Document, these Uniform Terms and Conditions, along with any attachments, and any Amendments, purchase orders, and Work Orders that may be issued by the System Agency.

"Deliverables" means the goods, services, Work, and Work Product to be provided to System Agency under the Contract.

"DSHS" means the Department of State Health Services.

"Effective Date" means the date on which the Contract takes effect.

"Federal Fiscal Year" means the period beginning October 1 and ending September 30 each year, which is the annual accounting period for the United States government.

"GAAP" means Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

"GASB" means the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

"HHSC" means the Health and Human Services Commission.

"Health and Human Services" or "HHS" includes HHSC and DSHS.

"HUB" means Historically Underutilized Business, as defined by Chapter 2161 of the Texas Government Code.

"Intellectual Property Rights" means the worldwide proprietary rights or interests, including patent, copyright, trade secret, and trademark rights, as such rights may be evidenced by or embodied in:

- i. any idea, design, concept, personality right, method, process, technique, apparatus, invention, discovery, or improvement;
- any work of authorship, including any compilation, computer code, website or web page design, literary work, pictorial work, or graphic work;
- iii. any trademark, service mark, trade dress, trade name, branding, or other indicia of source or origin;
- iv. domain name registrations; and
- v. any other proprietary or similar rights. The Intellectual Property Rights of a Party include all worldwide proprietary rights or interests that the Party may have acquired by assignment, by exclusive license, or by license with the right to grant sublicenses.

"Local Government" means a Texas governmental unit defined under and authorized to enter this contract by Texas Government Code, Chapter 791.

"Parties" means the System Agency and Performing Agency, collectively.

"Party" means either the System Agency or Performing Agency, individually.

"Performing Agency" means the State Agency or Local Government providing the goods or services defined in this Contract.

"Receiving Agency" means HHSC or DSHS, as applicable, Agency receiving the benefit of the goods or services provided under this Contract.

"Signature Document" means the document executed by both Parties that sets forth all the documents that constitute the Contract.

"Solicitation" means the document, if any, issued by the System Agency (including any published addenda, exhibits, and attachments) under which the goods or services provided under the Contract were initially requested, which is incorporated by reference for all purposes in its entirety.

"Solicitation Response" means Performing Agency's full and complete response (including any attachments and addenda) to the Solicitation, which is incorporated by reference for all purposes in its entirety. "State Agency" means a Texas "Agency" as defined under Texas Government Code, Chapter 771.

"State Fiscal Year" means the period beginning September 1 and ending August 31 each year, which is the annual accounting period for the State of Texas.

"State of Texas Textravel" means the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts' state travel laws, rules, and policies.

"System Agency" means HHSC or DSHS, as applicable.

"Third Party IP" means the Intellectual Property Rights of any third party that is not a party to this Contract, and that is not a subcontractor.

"Work" means all services to be performed, goods to be delivered, and any appurtenant actions performed, and items produced, conceived, or developed, including Deliverables.

"Work Order" means an individually negotiated document that is executed by both Parties and which authorizes a Project, if any, in an indefinite quantity Contract.

"Work Product" means any and all works, including work papers, notes, materials, approaches, designs, specifications, systems, innovations, improvements, inventions, software, programs, source code, documentation, training materials, audio or audiovisual recordings, methodologies, concepts, studies, reports, whether finished or unfinished, and whether or not included in the Deliverables, that are developed, produced, generated, or provided by Performing Agency in connection with Performing Agency's performance of its duties under the Contract or through use of any funding provided under this Contract.

1.2 Interpretive Provisions

A. The meanings of defined terms include the singular and plural forms.

B. The words "hereof," "herein," "hereunder," and similar words refer to this Contract as a whole and not to any particular provision, section, attachment, or schedule of this Contract unless otherwise specified. C. The term "including" is not limiting and means "including without limitation" and, unless otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, (i) references to contracts (including this Contract) and other contractual instruments shall be deemed to include all subsequent Amendments and other modifications, but only to the extent that such Amendments and other modifications are not prohibited by the terms of this Contract, and (ii) references to any statute, rule, or regulation are to be construed as including all statutory and regulatory provisions consolidating, amending, replacing, or supplementing the statute or regulation.

D. The captions and headings of this Contract are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the interpretation of this Contract.

E. All attachments, including those incorporated by reference, and any Amendments are considered part of the terms of this Contract.

F. This Contract may use several different limitations, regulations, or policies to regulate the same or similar matters. All such limitations, regulations, and policies are cumulative.

G. Unless otherwise expressly provided, reference to any action of the System Agency or by the System Agency by way of consent, approval, or waiver will be deemed modified by the phrase "in its sole discretion."

H. Time is of the essence in this Contract.

Article II. Payment Provisions

2.1 Payment

Payment shall be made in accordance with Government Code, Chapter 771, Government Code, Chapter 791, or Government Code, Chapter 2251.051, as applicable.

2.2 Ancillary and Travel Expenses

A. Except as otherwise provided in the Contract, no ancillary expenses incurred by the Performing Agency in connection with its provision of the services or Deliverables will be reimbursed by the System Agency. Ancillary expenses include, but are not limited to costs associated with transportation, delivery, and insurance for each Deliverable. B. When the reimbursement of travel expenses is authorized by the Contract, all such expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts' Textravel accessible at the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts website.

2.3 No Quantity Guarantees

The System Agency makes no guarantee of volume or usage of Work under this Contract. All Work requested may be on an irregular and as needed basis throughout the Contract term.

2.4 Taxes

Purchases made for State of Texas use are exempt from the State Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax. Performing Agency represents and warrants that it shall pay all taxes or similar amounts resulting from the Contract, including, but not limited to, any federal, State, or local income, sales or excise taxes of Performing Agency or its employees. System Agency shall not be liable for any taxes resulting from the contract.

Article III. State and Federal Funding

3.1 Excess Obligations Prohibited

The Contract is subject to termination or cancellation, without penalty to the System Agency, either in whole or in part, subject to the availability of state funds. System Agency is a state agency whose authority and appropriations are subject to actions of the Texas Legislature. If System Agency becomes subject to a legislative change, revocation of statutory authority, or lack of appropriated funds that would render either System Agency's or Performing Agency's delivery or performance under the Contract impossible or unnecessary, the Contract will be terminated or cancelled and be deemed null and void. In the event of a termination or cancellation under this Section, System Agency will not be liable to Performing Agency for any damages that are caused or associated with such termination, or cancellation, and System Agency will not be required to give prior notice.

3.2 No Debt Against the State

This Contract will not be construed as creating any debt by or on behalf of the State of Texas.

3.3 Debt and Delinquencies

Performing Agency agrees that any payments due under the Contract shall be directly applied towards eliminating any debt or delinquency it has to the State of Texas including, but not limited to, delinquent taxes, delinquent student loan payments, and delinquent child support.

3.4 Refunds and Overpayments

A. At its sole discretion, the System Agency may:

i. withhold all or part of any payments to Performing Agency to offset overpayments, unallowable or ineligible costs made to the Performing Agency, or if any required financial status report(s) is not submitted by the due date(s); or,

ii. require Performing Agency to promptly refund or credit - within thirty (30) calendar days of written notice - any funds erroneously paid by System Agency which are not expressly authorized under the Contract.

- B. "Overpayments," as used in this Section, include payments:
 - i. made by the System Agency that exceed the maximum allowable rates;
 - ii. that are not allowed under applicable laws, rules, or regulations; or,

iii. that are otherwise inconsistent with this Contract, including any unapproved expenditures. Performing Agency understands and agrees that it will be liable to the System Agency for any costs disallowed pursuant to financial and compliance audit(s) of funds received under this Contract. Performing Agency further understands and agrees that reimbursement of such disallowed costs shall be paid by Performing Agency from funds which were not provided or otherwise made available to Performing Agency under this Contract.

Article IV. Warranty, Affirmations, Assurances, and Certifications

4.1 Warranty

Performing Agency warrants that all Work under this Contract shall be completed in a manner consistent with standards under the terms of this Contract, in the applicable trade, profession, or industry; shall conform to or exceed the specifications set forth in the Contract; and all Deliverables shall be fit for ordinary use, of good quality, and with no material defects. If System Agency, in its sole discretion, determines Performing Agency has failed to complete Work timely or to perform satisfactorily under conditions required by this Contract, the System Agency may require Performing Agency, at its sole expense, to:

i. Repair or replace all defective or damaged Work;

ii. Refund any payment Performing Agency received from System Agency for all defective or damaged Work and, in conjunction therewith, require Performing

iii. Agency to accept the return of such Work; and, iii. Take necessary action to ensure that Performing Agency's future performance and Work conform to the Contract requirements.

4.2 Contract Affirmations

Performing Agency certifies that, to the extent Contract Affirmations are incorporated into the Contract under the Signature Document, the Performing Agency has reviewed the Contract Affirmations and that Performing Agency is in compliance with all requirements.

4.3 Federal Assurances

Performing Agency certifies that, to the extent federal assurances are incorporated into the Contract under the Signature Document, the Performing Agency has reviewed the federal assurances and that Performing Agency is in compliance with all requirements.

4.4 Federal Certifications

Performing Agency certifies that, to the extent federal certifications are incorporated into the Contract under the Signature Document, the Performing Agency has reviewed the federal certifications and that Performing Agency is in compliance with all requirements. In addition, Performing Agency certifies that it is and shall remain in compliance with all applicable federal laws, rules, and regulations, as they may pertain to this Contract.

Article V. Intellectual Property

5.1 Ownership of Work Product

A. All right, title, and interest in the Work Product, including all Intellectual Property Rights therein, is exclusively owned by System Agency. Performing Agency and Performing Agency's employees will have no rights in or ownership of the Work Product or any other property of System Agency.

B. Any and all Work Product that is copyrightable under United States copyright law is deemed to be "work made for hire" owned by System Agency, as provided by Title 17 of the United States Code. To the extent that Work Product does not qualify as a "work made for hire" under applicable federal law, Performing Agency hereby irrevocably assigns and transfers to System Agency, its successors and assigns, the entire right, title, and interest in and to the Work Product, including any and all Intellectual Property Rights embodied therein or associated therewith, and in and to all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work Product, and in and to all income, royalties, damages, claims and payments now or hereafter due or payable with respect thereto, and in and to all causes of action, either in law or in equity for past, present or future infringement based on the copyrights, and in and to all rights corresponding to the foregoing.

C. Performing Agency agrees to execute all papers and to perform such other acts as System Agency may deem necessary to secure for System Agency or its designee the rights herein assigned.

D. In the event that Performing Agency has any rights in and to the Work Product that cannot be assigned to System Agency, Performing Agency hereby grants to System Agency an exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free, transferable, irrevocable, and perpetual license, with the right to sublicense, to reproduce, distribute, modify, create derivative works of, publicly perform and publicly display, make, have made, use, sell and offer for sale the Work Product and any products developed by practicing such rights.

E. The foregoing does not apply to Incorporated Pre-existing Works or Third Party IP that are incorporated in the Work Product by Performing Agency. Performing Agency shall provide System Agency access during normal business hours to all Vendor materials, premises, and computer files containing the Work Product.

5.2 Performing Agency's Pre-Existing Works

A. To the extent that Performing Agency incorporates into the Work Product any works of Performing Agency that were created by Performing Agency or that Performing Agency acquired rights in prior to the Effective Date of this Contract (**"Incorporated Pre-existing Works**"), Performing Agency retains ownership of such Incorporated Pre-existing Works.

B. Performing Agency hereby grants to System Agency an irrevocable, perpetual, nonexclusive, royalty-free, transferable, worldwide right and license, with the right to sublicense, to use, reproduce, modify, copy, create derivative works of, publish, publicly perform and display, sell, offer to sell, make and have made, the Incorporated Pre-existing Works, in any medium, with or without the associated Work Product.

C. Performing Agency represents, warrants, and covenants to System Agency that Performing Agency has all necessary right and authority to grant the foregoing license in the Incorporated Pre-existing Works to System Agency.

5.3 Third Party IP

A. To the extent that any Third Party IP is included or incorporated in the Work Product by Performing Agency, Performing Agency hereby grants to System Agency, or shall obtain from the applicable third party for System Agency's benefit, the irrevocable, perpetual, non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free right and license, for System Agency's internal business purposes only,

i. to use, reproduce, display, perform, distribute copies of, and prepare derivative works based upon such Third Party IP and any derivative

works thereof embodied in or delivered to System Agency in conjunction with the Work Product, and

ii. to authorize others to do any or all of the foregoing.

B. Performing Agency shall obtain System Agency's advance written approval prior to incorporating any Third Party IP into the Work Product, and Performing Agency shall notify System Agency on delivery of the Work Product if such materials include any Third Party IP.

C. Performing Agency shall provide System Agency all supporting documentation demonstrating Performing Agency's compliance with this Section 5.3, including without limitation documentation indicating a third party's written approval for Performing Agency to use any Third Party IP that may be incorporated in the Work Product.

5.4 Agreements with Employees and Subcontractors

Performing Agency shall have written, binding agreements with its employees and subcontractors that include provisions sufficient to give effect to and enable Performing Agency's compliance with Performing Agency's obligations under this **Article V**.

5.5 Delivery Upon Termination or Expiration

No later than the first calendar day after the termination or expiration of the Contract or upon

System Agency's request, Performing Agency shall deliver to System Agency all completed, or partially completed, Work Product, including any Incorporated Pre-existing Works, and any and all versions thereof. Performing Agency's failure to timely deliver such Work Product is a material breach of the Contract. Performing Agency will not retain any copies of the Work Product or any documentation or other products or results of Performing Agency's activities under the Contract without the prior written consent of System Agency.

5.6 Survival

The provisions and obligations of this $\underline{\text{Article V}}$ survive any termination or expiration of the Contract.

5.7 System Agency Data

A. As between the Parties, all data and information acquired, accessed, or made available to Performing Agency by, through, or on behalf of System Agency or System Agency contractors, including all electronic data generated, processed, transmitted, or stored by Performing Agency in the course of providing data processing services in connection with Performing Agency's performance hereunder (the "System Agency Data"), is owned solely by System Agency.

B. Performing Agency has no right or license to use, analyze, aggregate, transmit, create derivatives of, copy, disclose, or process the System Agency Data except as required for Performing Agency to fulfill its obligations under the Contract or as authorized in advance in writing by System Agency.

C. For the avoidance of doubt, Performing Agency is expressly prohibited from using, and from permitting any third party to use, System Agency Data for marketing, research, or other non-governmental or commercial purposes, without the prior written consent of System Agency.

D. Performing Agency shall make System Agency Data available to System Agency, including to System Agency's designated vendors, as directed in writing by System Agency. The foregoing shall be at no cost to System Agency. Agency.

E. Furthermore, the proprietary nature of Performing Agency's systems that process, store, collect, and/or transmit the System Agency Data shall not excuse Performing Agency's performance of its obligations hereunder.

Article VI. Property

6.1 Use of State Property

A. Performing Agency is prohibited from using State Property for any purpose other than performing services authorized under the Contract.

B. State Property includes, but is not limited to, System Agency's office space, identification badges, System Agency information technology equipment and networks (e.g., laptops, portable printers, cell phones, iPads or tablets, external hard drives, data storage devices, any System Agency-

issued software, and the System Agency Virtual Private Network (VPN client)), and any other resources of System Agency.

C. Performing Agency shall not remove State Property from the continental United States. In addition, Performing Agency may not use any computing device to access System Agency's network or e-mail while outside of the continental United States.

D. Performing Agency shall not perform any maintenance services on State Property unless the Contract expressly authorizes such services.

E. During the time that State Property is in the possession of Performing Agency, Performing Agency shall be responsible for:

i. all repair and replacement charges incurred by State Agency that are associated with loss of State Property or damage beyond normal wear and tear, and

ii. all charges attributable to Performing Agency's use of State Property that exceeds the Contract scope. Performing Agency shall fully reimburse such charges to System Agency within ten (10) calendar days of Performing Agency's receipt of System Agency's notice of amount due. Use of State Property for a purpose not authorized by the Contract shall constitute breach of contract and may result in termination of the Contract and the pursuit of other remedies available to System Agency under contract, at law, or in equity.

6.2 Damage to Government Property

A. In the event of loss, destruction, or damage to any System Agency or State of Texas owned, leased, or occupied property or equipment by Performing Agency or Performing Agency's employees, agents, Subcontractors, and suppliers, Performing Agency shall be liable to System Agency and the State of Texas for the full cost of repair, reconstruction, or replacement of the lost, destroyed, or damaged property.

B. Performing Agency shall notify System Agency of the loss, destruction, or damage of equipment or property within one (1) business day. Performing Agency shall reimburse System Agency and the State of Texas for such property damage within 10 calendar days after Performing Agency's receipt of System Agency's notice of amount due.

6.3 Property Rights Upon Termination or Expiration of Contract

In the event the Contract is terminated for any reason, or upon its expiration State Property remains the property of the System Agency and must be returned to the System Agency by the end date of the Contract or upon System Agency's request.

Article VII. Record Retention, Audit, and Confidentiality

7.1 Record Maintenance and Retention

A. Performing Agency shall keep and maintain under GAAP or GASB, as applicable, full, true, and complete records necessary to fully disclose to the System Agency, the Texas State Auditor's Office, the United States Government, and their authorized representatives sufficient information to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of this Contract and all state and federal rules, regulations, and statutes.

B. Performing Agency shall maintain and retain legible copies of this Contract and all records relating to the performance of the Contract including supporting fiscal documents adequate to ensure that claims for contract funds are in accordance with applicable State of Texas requirements. These records shall be maintained and retained by Performing Agency for a minimum of seven (7) years after the Contract expiration date or seven (7) years after the completion of all audit, claim, litigation, or dispute matters involving the Contract are resolved, whichever is later.

7.2 Agency's Right to Audit

A. Performing Agency shall make available at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, and for reasonable periods, work papers, reports, books, records, supporting documents kept current by Performing Agency pertaining to the Contract for purposes of inspecting, monitoring, auditing, or evaluating by System Agency and the State of Texas.

B. In addition to any right of access arising by operation of law, Performing Agency and any of Performing Agency's affiliate or subsidiary organizations, or subcontractors shall permit the System Agency or any of its duly authorized representatives, as well as duly authorized federal, state or local authorities, unrestricted access to and the right to examine any site where business is conducted or services are performed, and all records, which includes but is not limited to financial, client and patient records, books, papers or documents related to this Contract. If the Contract includes federal funds, federal agencies that shall have a right of access to records as described in this section include: the federal agency providing the funds, the Comptroller General of the United States, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector General, and any of their authorized representatives. In addition, agencies of the State of Texas that shall have a right of access to records as described in this section include: the System Agency, HHSC, HHSC's contracted examiners, the State Auditor's Office, the Texas Attorney General's Office, and any successor agencies. Each of these entities may be a duly authorized authority.

C. If deemed necessary by the System Agency or any duly authorized authority, for the purpose of investigation or hearing, Performing Agency shall produce original documents related to this Contract.

D. The System Agency and any duly authorized authority shall have the right to audit billings both before and after payment, and all documentation that substantiates the billings.

E. Performing Agency shall include this provision concerning the right of access to, and examination of, sites and information related to this Contract in any subcontract it awards.

7.3 Response/Compliance with Audit or Inspection Findings

A. Performing Agency must act to ensure its and its subcontractors' compliance with all corrections necessary to address any finding of noncompliance with any law, regulation, audit requirement, or generally accepted accounting principle, or any other deficiency identified in any audit, review, or inspection of the Contract and the services and Deliverables provided. Any such correction will be at Performing Agency's or its Subcontractor's sole expense. Whether Performing Agency's action corrects the noncompliance shall be solely the decision of the System Agency.

B. As part of the services, Performing Agency must provide to System Agency upon request a copy of those portions of Performing Agency's and its subcontractors' internal audit reports relating to the services and Deliverables provided to the State under the Contract.

7.4 State Auditor's Right to Audit

A. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from the state directly under the Contract or indirectly through a subcontract under the Contract. The acceptance of funds directly under the Contract or indirectly through a subcontract under the Contract acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. Under the direction of the legislative audit committee, an entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation by the state auditor must provide the state auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit.

B. The Performing Agency shall comply with any rules and procedures of the state auditor in the implementation and enforcement of Section 2262.154 of the Texas Government Code.

7.5 Confidentiality

Performing Agency shall maintain as confidential and shall not disclose to third parties without System Agency's prior written consent, any System Agency information including but not limited to System Agency Data, System Agency's business activities, practices, systems, conditions and services. This section will survive termination or expiration of this Contract. The obligations of Performing Agency under this section will survive termination or expiration of this Contract. This requirement must be included in all subcontracts awarded by Performing Agency.

Article VIII. Contract Remedies and Early Termination

8.1 Contract Remedies

To ensure Performing Agency's full performance of the Contract and compliance with applicable law, the System Agency reserves the right to hold

Performing Agency accountable for breach of contract or substandard performance and may take remedial or corrective actions, including, but not limited to:

i. suspending all or part of the Contract;

ii. requiring the Performing Agency to take specific actions in order to remain in compliance with the Contract;

iii. recouping payments made by the System Agency to the Performing Agency found to be in error;

iv. suspending, limiting, or placing conditions on the Performing Agency's continued performance of Work; or

v. imposing any other remedies, sanctions, or penalties authorized under this Contract or permitted by federal or state law.

8.2 Termination for Convenience

The System Agency may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time when, in its sole discretion, the System Agency determines that termination is in the best interests of the State of Texas. The termination will be effective on the date specified in the System Agency's notice of termination.

8.3 Termination for Cause

Except as otherwise provided by the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, or any successor law, the System Agency may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, upon either of the following conditions:

i. Material Breach

The System Agency will have the right to terminate the Contract in whole or in part if the System Agency determines, in its sole discretion, that Performing Agency has materially breached the Contract or has failed to adhere to any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction and such violation prevents or substantially impairs performance of Performing Agency's duties under the Contract. Performing Agency's misrepresentation in any aspect of Performing Agency's Solicitation Response, if any, or Performing Agency's addition to the System for Award Management (SAM) exclusion list will also constitute a material breach of the Contract.

ii. Failure to Maintain Financial Viability

The System Agency may terminate the Contract if, in its sole discretion, the System Agency has a good faith belief that Performing Agency no longer maintains the financial viability required to complete the Work, or otherwise fully perform its responsibilities under the Contract.

8.4 Performing Agency Responsibility for System Agency's Termination Costs

If the System Agency terminates the Contract for cause, the Performing Agency shall be responsible to the System Agency for all costs incurred by the System Agency and the State of Texas to replace the Performing Agency. These costs include, but are not limited to, the costs of procuring a substitute vendor and the cost of any claim or litigation attributable to Performing Agency's failure to perform any Work in accordance with the terms of the Contract.

Article IX. General Provisions

9.1 Amendment

The Contract may only be amended by an Amendment executed by both Parties.

9.2 Insurance

A. Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, Performing Agency shall acquire and maintain, for the duration of this Contract, insurance coverage necessary to ensure proper fulfillment of this Contract and potential liabilities thereunder with financially sound and reputable insurers licensed by the Texas Department of Insurance, in the type and amount customarily carried within the industry as determined by the System Agency. Performing Agency shall provide evidence of insurance as required under this Contract, including a schedule of coverage or underwriter's schedules establishing to the satisfaction of the System Agency the nature and extent of coverage granted by each such policy, upon request by the System Agency. In the event that any policy is determined by the System Agency to be deficient to comply with the terms of this Contract, Performing Agency shall secure such additional policies or coverage as the System Agency may reasonably request or that are required by law or regulation. If coverage expires during the term of this Contract, Performing Agency must produce renewal certificates for each type of coverage.

B. These and all other insurance requirements under the Contract apply to both Performing Agency and its subcontractors, if any. Performing Agency is responsible for ensuring its subcontractors' compliance with all requirements.

9.3 Limitation on Authority

A. The authority granted to Performing Agency by the System Agency is limited to the terms of the Contract.

B. Performing Agency shall not have any authority to act for or on behalf of the System Agency or the State of Texas except as expressly provided for in the Contract; no other authority, power, or use is granted or implied. Performing Agency may not incur any debt, obligation, expense, or liability of any kind on behalf of System Agency or the State of Texas.

C. Performing Agency may not rely upon implied authority and is not granted authority under the Contract to:

i. Make public policy on behalf of the System Agency;

ii. Promulgate, amend, or disregard administrative regulations or program policy decisions made by State and federal agencies responsible for administration of a System Agency program; or

iii. Unilaterally communicate or negotiate with any federal or state agency or the Texas Legislature on behalf of the System Agency regarding System Agency programs or the Contract. However, upon System Agency request and with reasonable notice from System Agency to the Performing Agency, the Performing Agency shall assist the System Agency in communications and negotiations regarding the Work under the Contract with state and federal governments.

9.4 Legal Obligations

Performing Agency shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations, including all federal and state accessibility laws relating to direct and indirect use of information and communication technology. Performing Agency shall be deemed to have knowledge of all applicable laws and regulations and be deemed to understand them.

9.5 Change in Laws and Compliance with Laws

Performing Agency shall comply with all laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines applicable to a vendor providing services and products required by the Contract to the State of Texas, as these laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines currently exist and as amended throughout the term of the Contract. System Agency reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to unilaterally amend the Contract to incorporate any modifications necessary for System Agency's compliance, as an agency of the State of Texas, with all applicable state and federal laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines.

9.6 E-Verify Program

Performing Agency certifies that for contracts for services, Performing Agency shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system during the term of the Contract to determine the eligibility of:

i. all persons employed by Performing Agency to perform duties within Texas; and

ii. all persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the Performing Agency to perform Work pursuant to the Contract within the United States of America.

9.7 Permitting and Licensure

At Performing Agency's sole expense, Performing Agency shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Contract any state, county, city, or federal license, authorization, insurance, waiver, permit, qualification or certification required by statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by Performing Agency to provide the goods or services required by this Contract. Performing Agency shall be responsible for payment of all taxes, assessments, fees, premiums, permits, and licenses required by law. Performing Agency shall be responsible for payment of any such government obligations not paid by its subcontractors during performance of this Contract.

9.8 Subcontractors

Performing Agency may not subcontract any or all of the Work and/or obligations under the Contract without prior written approval of the System Agency. Subcontracts, if any, entered into by the Performing Agency shall be in writing and be subject to the requirements of the Contract. Should Performing Agency subcontract any of the services required in the Contract, Performing Agency expressly understands and acknowledges that in entering into such subcontract(s), System Agency is in no manner liable to any subcontractor(s) of Performing Agency. In no event shall this provision relieve Performing Agency of the responsibility for ensuring that the services performed under all subcontracts are rendered in compliance with the Contract.

9.9 Independent Performing Agency

Performing Agency and Performing Agency's employees, representatives, agents, subcontractors, suppliers, and third-party service providers shall serve as independent contractors in providing the services under the Contract. Neither Performing Agency nor System Agency is an agent of the other and neither may make any commitments on the other party's behalf. Performing Agency shall have no claim against System Agency for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker's compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any kind. The Contract shall not create any joint venture, partnership, agency, or employment relationship between Performing Agency and System Agency.

9.10 Governing Law and Venue

This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to the conflicts of law provisions. The venue of any suit arising under the Contract is fixed in any court of competent jurisdiction of Travis County, Texas, unless the specific venue is otherwise identified in a statute which directly names or otherwise identifies its applicability to the System Agency.

9.11 Severability

If any provision of the Contract is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable by a court of law or equity, such construction will not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision or provisions of this Contract. It is the intent and agreement of the Parties this Contract shall be deemed amended by modifying such provision to the extent necessary to render it valid, legal and enforceable while preserving its intent or, if such modification is not possible, by substituting another provision that is valid, legal and enforceable and that achieves the same objective. All other provisions of this Contract will continue in full force and effect.

9.12 Survivability

Expiration or termination of the Contract for any reason does not release Performing Agency from any liability or obligation set forth in the Contract that is expressly stated to survive any such expiration or termination, that by its nature would be intended to be applicable following any such expiration or termination, or that is necessary to fulfill the essential purpose of the Contract, including without limitation the provisions regarding warranty, indemnification, confidentiality, and rights and remedies upon termination.

9.13 Force Majeure

Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay in, or failure of performance of, any requirement included in the Contract caused by force majeure. The existence of such causes of delay or failure shall extend the period of performance until after the causes of delay or failure have been removed provided the non-performing party exercises all reasonable due diligence to perform. Force majeure is defined as acts of God, war, fires, explosions, hurricanes, floods, failure of transportation, or other causes that are beyond the reasonable control of either party and that by exercise of due foresight such party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid, and which, by the exercise of all reasonable due diligence, such party is unable to overcome.

9.14 Dispute Resolution

A. The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 of the Texas Government Code must be used to attempt to resolve any dispute arising under the Contract. If the Performing Agency's claim for breach of contract cannot be resolved informally with the System Agency, the claim shall be submitted to the negotiation process provided in Chapter 2260. To initiate the process, the Performing Agency shall submit written notice, as required by Chapter 2260, to the individual identified in the Contract for receipt of notices. Any informal resolution efforts shall in no way modify the requirements or toll the timing of the formal written notice of a claim for breach of contract required under §2260.051 of the Texas Government Code. Compliance by the Performing Agency with Chapter 2260 is a condition precedent to the filing of a contested case proceeding under Chapter 2260.

B. The contested case process provided in Chapter 2260 is the Performing Agency's sole and exclusive process for seeking a remedy for an alleged breach of contract by the System Agency if the Parties are unable to resolve their disputes as described above.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, unless otherwise requested or approved in writing by the System Agency, the Performing Agency shall continue performance and shall not be excused from performance during the period of any breach of contract claim or while the dispute is pending. However, the Performing Agency may suspend performance during the pendency of such claim or dispute if the Performing Agency has complied with all provisions of Section 2251.051, Texas Government Code, and such suspension of performance is expressly applicable and authorized under that law.

9.15 No Implied Waiver of Provisions

The failure of the System Agency to object to or to take affirmative action with respect to any conduct of the Performing Agency which is in violation or breach of the terms of the Contract shall not be construed as a waiver of the violation or breach, or of any future violation or breach.

9.16 Media Releases

A. Performing Agency shall not use System Agency's name, logo, or other likeness in any press release, marketing material, or other announcement without System Agency's prior written approval. System Agency does not endorse any vendor, commodity, or service. Performing Agency is not authorized to make or participate in any media releases or public announcements pertaining to this Contract or the services to which they relate without System Agency's prior written consent, and then only in accordance with explicit written instruction from System Agency.

B. Performing Agency may publish, at its sole expense, results of Performing Agency performance under the Contract with the System Agency's prior review and approval, which the System Agency may exercise at its sole discretion. Any publication (written, visual, or sound) will acknowledge the support received from the System Agency and any Federal agency, as appropriate.

9.17 No Marketing Activities

Performing Agency is prohibited from using the Work for any Performing Agency or thirdparty marketing, advertising, or promotional activities, without the prior written consent of System Agency. The foregoing prohibition includes, without limitation, the placement of banners, pop-up ads, or other advertisements promoting Performing Agency's or a third party's products, services, workshops, trainings, or other commercial offerings on any website portal or internet-based service or software application hosted or managed by Performing Agency as part of the Work.

9.18 Prohibition on Non-Compete Restrictions

Performing Agency shall not require any employees or subcontractors to agree to any conditions, such as non-compete clauses or other contractual arrangements that would limit or restrict such persons or entities from employment or contracting with the State of Texas.

9.19 Sovereign Immunity

Nothing in the Contract shall be construed as a waiver of the System Agency's or the State's sovereign immunity. This Contract shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver of any of the privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to the System Agency or the State of Texas. The failure to enforce, or any delay in the enforcement of, any privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to the System Agency or the State of Texas under the Contract or under applicable law shall not constitute a waiver of such privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities or be considered as a basis for estoppel. System Agency does not waive any privileges, rights, defenses, or immunities available to System Agency by entering into the Contract or by its conduct prior to or subsequent to entering into the Contract.

9.20 Entire Contract and Modification

This Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties and is intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. Any additional or conflicting terms in any future document incorporated into the Contract will be harmonized with this Contract to the extent possible.

9.21 Counterparts

This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be an original, and all such counterparts will together constitute but one and the same Contract.

9.22 Civil Rights

A. Performing Agency shall comply with all applicable state and federal antidiscrimination laws, including:

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d, et seq.);

ii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. §794);

iii. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12101, et seq.);

iv. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6101, et seq.);

v. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §1681, et seq.);

vi. Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. §2011, et seq.); and

vii. The System Agency's administrative rules, as set forth in the Texas Administrative Code, to the extent applicable to this Agreement.

B. Performing Agency shall comply with all amendments to these laws, and all requirements imposed by the regulations issued pursuant to these laws. These laws provide in part that no persons in the United States may, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, political beliefs, or religion, be excluded from participation in or denied any service or other benefit provided by Federal or State funding, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination.

C. Performing Agency shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and its implementing regulations at 45 C.F.R. Part 80 or 7 C.F.R. Part 15, prohibiting a Performing Agency from adopting and implementing policies and procedures that exclude or have the effect of excluding or limiting the participation of clients in its programs, benefits, or activities on the basis of national origin. Civil rights laws require Performing Agency to provide alternative methods for ensuring access to services for applicants and recipients who cannot express themselves fluently in English. Performing Agency shall take reasonable steps to provide services and information, both orally and in writing and electronically, in appropriate languages other than English, to ensure that persons with limited English proficiency are effectively informed and can have meaningful access to programs, benefits, and activities.

D. Performing Agency shall post applicable civil rights posters in areas open to the public informing clients of their civil rights and including contact information for the HHS Civil Rights Office. The posters are available on the HHS website at:

http://hhscx.hhsc.texas.gov/system-support-services/civil-rights/publications

E. Performing Agency shall comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and its implementing regulations at 28 CFR Subpart G § 42.503, and Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and its implementing regulations at 28 CFR Subpart B §35.130 which includes requiring Performing Agency to make reasonable modifications in policies, practices, or procedures when the modifications are necessary to avoid discrimination on the basis of disability, unless the Performing Agency can demonstrate that making the modifications would fundamentally alter the nature of the service, program, or activity.

F. Performing Agency shall comply with federal regulations regarding equal treatment for faith-based organizations under 45 C.F.R. Part 87 or 7 C.F.R.

Part 16, as applicable. Performing Agency shall not discriminate against clients or prospective clients on the basis of religion or religious belief and shall provide written notice to beneficiaries of their rights.

G. Upon request, Performing Agency shall provide the HHSC Civil Rights Office with copies of the Performing Agency's civil rights policies and procedures.

H. Performing Agency must notify HHSC's Civil Rights Office of any civil rights complaints received relating to its performance under this Contract. This notice must be delivered no more than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of a complaint. This notice must be directed to:

HHSC Civil Rights Office

701 W. 51st Street, Mail Code W206

Austin, Texas 78751

Phone Toll Free: (888) 388-6332 Phone: (512) 438-4313 Fax: (512) 438-5885.

9.23 Enterprise Information Management Standards

Performing Agency shall conform to HHS standards for data management as described by the policies of the HHS Chief Data and Analytics Officer. These include, but are not limited to, standards for documentation and communication of data models, metadata, and other data definition methods that are required by HHS for ongoing data governance, strategic portfolio analysis, interoperability planning, and valuation of HHS System data assets.

9.24 Disclosure of Litigation

A. The Performing Agency must disclose in writing to the contract manager assigned to this Contract any material civil or criminal litigation or indictment either threatened or pending involving the Performing Agency. "Threatened litigation" as used herein shall include governmental investigations and civil investigative demands. "Litigation" as used herein shall include administrative enforcement actions brought by governmental agencies. The Performing Agency must also disclose any material litigation threatened or pending involving subcontractors, consultants, and/or lobbyists. For purposes of this section, "material" refers, but is not limited, to any action or pending action that a reasonable person knowledgeable in the applicable industry would consider relevant to the Work under the Contract or any development such a person would want to be aware of in order to stay fully apprised of the total mix of information relevant to the Work, together with any litigation threatened or pending that may result in a substantial change in the Performing Agency's financial condition.

B. This is a continuing disclosure requirement; any litigation commencing after Contract Award must be disclosed in a written statement to the assigned contract manager within seven calendar days of its occurrence.

9.25 No Third-Party Beneficiaries

The Contract is made solely and specifically among and for the benefit of the Parties named herein and their respective successors and assigns, and no other person shall have any right, interest, or claims hereunder or be entitled to any benefits pursuant to or on account of the Contract as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise.

9.26 Binding Effect

The Contract shall inure to the benefit of, be binding upon, and be enforceable against, each Party and their respective permitted successors, assigns, transferees, and delegates.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK